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To our stockholders:

2007 was a period of fremendous activity and success for NationsHealth, during which we focused
on expanding our two core operating segments: Medical Producis and Insurance Services. The
outcome was the first full year of positive EBITDA in the Company's history and a solid platform

for future profitable growth. During 2007 we launched our new pharmacy operations, enabling

us to provide mail-order prescription medications to our patient base, and continued to expand
our business lines outside of, and complementary to, our core diabetes business. We continued to
grow our non-Medicare patient base by marketing to patients that have Medicaid as their primary
coverage and establishing new relationships with managed care organizations. Additionally, we
completed the acquisition of nine regional providers of dicbetes supplies, as well as Diabetes Care
& Education, Inc. located in Louisville, Kentucky, which has allowed us to expand our product

and service offerings to include insulin pumps and certified diabetic educators. These actions
have dramatically fransformed our Medical Products segment to better service the ever-growing
healthcare needs of the Medicare, Medicaid and managed care populations.

Qur Insurance Services segment reported profit of nearly $12 million in 2007, as compared to a loss

of $1.3 miillion in 2004, reflecting the first full year of operations under the revised economics of our
amended and restated agreement with CIGNA. In May 2008, we again amended and restated the
agreement, which extended the term through September 2012. We're honored to have CIGNA as a
major client of our Insurance Services segment and hope to build upon this successful collaboration
in the coming years as CIGNA expands their Medicare product offerings. We look forward to ongoing
success and growth with all of our insurance services clients as we continue to seek opportunities to
leverage our investment in this segment and extend our insurance service offerings.

While 2007 was a year of great success, our work is far from complete. 2008 will be an important year
for NationsHealth as we execute on our goal of growing the Company and achieving net income
profitability. We recently announced a corporate restructuring and certain executive management
changes, which was an important step in enabling us to achieve this goal. Furthermore, as one of
the leading mail order diabetes supply companies in the country, we expect to be a successful
participant in Medicare's competitive bidding program, scheduled to commence in mid-2008.

We're confident in our ability to drive significant shareholder value in 2008, and iook forward to
updating you on our progress throughout the course of the year. We thank you for your continued
support of NationsHealth.

Sincerely,

M

Glenn M. Parker, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer
NationsHealth, Inc.
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PART ]

Item 1. Business.
Business

NationsHealth, Inc. (referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as “NationsHealth,” the
“Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) provides medical products nationwide to Medicare and managed care
beneficiaries with a focus on improving the delivery and cost of healthcare to the approximately 44
million Medicare beneficiaries in the United States. NationsHeaith also provides certain services,
including marketing, insurance agent training and licensing, member enrollment and service, distribution
and billing and collections, to Medicare Part D prescription drug plan providers and other Medicare
benefit sponsors.

As of December 31, 2007, we were engaged in two reportable business segments, Medical Products
and Insurance Services. Additional information regarding our business segments can be found in Note 17
of our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Medical Products Segment

Home Delivery of Medical Products

We distribute medical equipment and supplies and dispense physician-prescribed medications
nationally from our licensed pharmacy in the State of Florida. We currently provide home delivery of
diabetes related products, prescription medications and other medical products, primarily to Medicare
beneficiaries under Part B, state Medicaid programs and through relationships with managed care
organizations. Through the third quarter of 2005, we acquired new patients for our medical products
primarily through the use of television advertising. Since the fourth quarter of 2005, our marketing
efforts have included limited television, direct mail campaigns and trade shows. In the fourth quarter of
2006, we also began acquiring patients via the purchase of the assets of several small medical equipment
businesses, including tangible and intangible assets such as patient lists.

The Federal Medicare program provides reimbursement to its beneficiaries for a number of products
under Medicare’s Part B or Part D coverages. Products covered under Part B include, among other items,
supplies used to treat diabetes and ostomy, and Part D covers self-administered prescription drugs.
Medicare Part B pays us 80% of the Medicare allowable fees for these products after the beneficiary has
satisfied his or her annual deductible amount, and we bill the remaining balance to either third party
payors, such as a patient’s supplemental insurance carrier, or, where permitted, directly to the patient. We
accept assignments of Medicare benefits, ship supplies and medications to patients and bill and receive
payments from Medicare and certain private insurers on behalf of patients (and bill patients or their
supplemental insurers for any co-payment and/or deductible). Revenue from Medicare represented
approximately 34%, 41% and 64% of our total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

On September 4, 2007, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Diabetes Care
and Education, Inc. (DC&E). DC&E is a provider of insulin pumps, pump supplies and blood glucose
monitoring equipment and supplies primarily through its facility in Louisville, Kentucky. DC&E also
offers diabetes education to individuals through its American Diabetes Association recognized education
programs. This acquisition was made as part of our strategy to add customers and expand product
offerings that are complimentary to our diabetes supplies business, and DC&E has become a part of our
Medical Products segment. We paid cash at closing of $2.5 million and issued 473,933 unregistered
shares of our common stock with a fair value of approximately $0.5 million. We may also be abligated to
pay additional cash consideration totaling up to $4.5 million if revenue associated with DC&E’s
operations in 2008, 2009 and 2010 exceed certain targets.




As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 76,000 patients to whom we or DC&E have shipped
medical products and supplies in the last 15 months and that have not cancelled our service.

Insurance Services Segment

We entered into an agreement with CIGNA effective May 5, 2005, with an initial term through
December 31, 2009, to provide services to CIGNA in connection with CIGNA’s offering of its national
Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to Medicare beneficiaries. This arrangement combined
CIGNA’s pharmacy product portfolio and expertise with regard to clinical management programs and our
experience with regard to Medicare and enrolling individual Medicare eligible beneficiaries. Pursuant to
this agreement, the services we provided to CIGNA included marketing, insurance agent training and
licensing, member enrollment and service, distribution, billing and collections. We trained and developed
a team of licensed healthcare insurance agents and began enrolling beneficiaries in CIGNA’s Medicare
Part D prescription drug plans throughout the United States on November 135, 2005, the first day of open
enroliment for the 2006 plan year.

On May 26, 2006, our agreement with CIGNA was amended and restated. This amended and restated
agreement modified the compensation terms to provide for a predictable service fee arrangement starting
with the 2007 plan year and continuing through December 31, 2009. Under the amended and restated
agreement, we continue to provide CIGNA with certain enrollee service activities and, at the option of
CIGNA, selected marketing and enrollment services. Furthermore, under the amended and restated
agreement, we may provide services, such as education, marketing, enrollment and member service, to
other Medicare Part D insurers and CIGNA may use other vendors to provide them with services for their
Medicare Part D program, provided, however, that CIGNA is required to pay us certain fees if they do not
meet specified thresholds of enrollees we service. In the fourth quarter of 2006, we began entering into
agreements to provide plan marketing, enrollment and advisory services to other Medicare prescription
drug and benefit providers. Revenue from CIGNA represented approximately 38%, 40% and 12% of our
total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We have been in negotiations with CIGNA to further
amend our agreement relating to the services we provide to, and the compensation we receive from,
CIGNA beginning in 2009. We believe this amendment will extend the term of the agreement through
2012, but reduce the number of services we provide to CIGNA and the corresponding fees associated
with the services. These negotiations have not been finalized.

Patient Service Organization

We employ a large team of licensed agents, numbering approximately 178 as of December 31, 2007,
and patient care representatives who are trained regarding all of the products and services we offer. Our
agents and representatives are available through toll-free phone numbers to assist members and patients,
and are trained to direct patients to sources where they can find more information concerning their
medical conditions, and to their physicians when appropriate.

We also offer a proactive healthcare compliance program to assist patients with their treatment
regimens. We contact our patients prior to the estimated date that their present supplies will be
exhausted, typically quarterly. We take this opportunity to extend the services we provide by making
inquiries designed to monitor the patient’s testing and medical supply usage patterns against the physician
prescribed regimen. Depending upon the results of the comparison, the patient may be advised of the
benefits of adjusting his or her testing or medical supply use to be in accordance with the physician’s
orders. If the present use pattern exceeds the physician’s orders, so that the patient is in danger of running
out of supplies, we may recommend that the patient notify their physician of the increased use to
determine whether an increased quantity of supplies can be made available to the patient. Alternatively,
with appropriate authorization, we may contact the patient’s physician on his or her behalf.




Competition

The markets we operate in are highly competitive. A number of our competitors and potential
competitors have substantially greater capital resources, purchasing power and advertising budgets, as
well as more experience in marketing and delivering the products and services we offer.

Our competitors include:
o other durable medical equipment providers;
» retail pharmacies;
» healthcare product distributors;
e pharmacy benefit management companies and prescription drug plans with in-house pharmacies;
and
s other companies that provide customer enrollment and services to prescription drug plans,

Government Regulation
General

As a healthcare supplier, we are subject to extensive government regulation, including fraud and
abuse laws. In the healthcare industry, many aspects of a company’s business, such as marketing, billing
and documentation are scrutinized by the government. Government payers, including Medicare and state
Medicaid programs, routinely conduct audits whereby patient records and other documents are reviewed
to monitor compliance with federal and state laws and regulations. Government agencies also investigate
companies regarding compliance. Violations of federal and state regulations can result in severe criminal,
civil and administrative penalties and sanctions, including exclusion from participation in healthcare
programs.

Numerous federal, state and local laws relating to controlled drug substances, safe working
conditions, environmental protection, disposal of hazardous or potentially hazardous substances and
various other matters apply to portions of our operations. Labeling and promotional activities relating to
medical devices and drugs are, in certain instances, subject to regulation by the Federal Trade
Commission (FTC). Drug products and drug recalls also are subject to extensive regulation by the Food
and Drug Administration (FDA). Although the cost of compliance with these regulations has not been
material to our existing operations to date, to the extent we engage in new activities or expand current
activities, the cost of compliance with applicable regulations and licensing requirements could become
significant.

Medicare

The medical products that we provide are reimbursed by Medicare. Medicare is a federally funded
program that provides health insurance coverage to qualified persons age 65 or older and some disabled
persons. As a Medicare supplier of durable medical equipment (DME), we must comply with applicable
supplier standards and stringent billing guidelines in order to maintain the right to receive Medicare
reimbursement.

Our compliance with Medicare and other regulations may be reviewed periodically by fedzral or state
agencies, including the United States Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of
Justice, the FDA and the FTC. We frequently receive screening audits by Medicare in the ordinary
course of business, and we believe that we do not have any instances of material noncompliance with
applicable laws and regulations.




HIPAA

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) sets forth privacy and
security regulations governing the use and disclosure of patient protected health information. We are
subject to HIPAA and must adhere to its numerous administrative requirements. Additionally,
NationsHealth’s privacy policies, practices and security safeguards must also comply with state laws that
are more stringent in protecting health information. We believe that we have developed and implemented
the required policies, procedures and forms necessary to comply in all material respects with HIPAA and
related applicable laws.

We could face potential criminal or civil sanctions if we do not comply with existing or new laws and
regulations related to patient health information. New health information standards, whether implemented
pursuant to HIPAA or otherwise, could have a significant effect on the manner in which we handle health
care related data and communicate with payors, and the cost of complying with such standards could be
significant.

Pharmacy

Through our pharmacy component, we provide oral prescription medications, as well as insulin and
syringes, to our patients. We are subject to extensive federal and state regulations governing controlled
drug substances. The Drug Enforcement Agency, FDA and each state’s Board of Pharmacy and/or
Department of Health regulate compliance. Failure to comply with federal and state laws may result in
severe civil and criminal penalties, including loss of licensure.

Seasonality

Other than the revenue from our Insurance Services segment that is directly related to marketing and
enrollment in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans, which is primarily earned during our fiscal fourth
quarter, we do not consider our business to be highly seasonai.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 674 total employees. Our workforce is non-
unionized and we believe our relationship with our employees is generally good.

Website

Our website can be accessed at www.nationshealth.com. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,
press releases and a link to our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission are located in the
Investor Relations section of our website. No information contained on our website is intended to be
included as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Risks Related to Our Business
We have a limited operating history and are subject to the risks of a new enterprise.

Our limited operating history makes it difficult to predict how our business will develop. We have
incurred annual operating losses since we commenced operations in 2002. Accordingly, we face the risks




and uncertainties encountered by early-stage companies, such as:

s No history of profitability;

o The evolving nature of the healthcare marketplace and the Medicare and Medicaid regulatory
environment; :

e The risks of competition, technological change or evolving patient preferences; and
The sufficiency and availability of capital.

We could experience significantly reduced revenues and earnings if Medicare changes, delays,
reduces or denies reimbursement.

We depend on the continued availability of reimbursement from federal and state healthcare programs
and private insurance plans for products sold to our patients and members. Revenue from Medicare
represented approximately 34%, 41% and 64% of our total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The federal regulatory authorities periodically review and adjust reimbursement amounts. Any reduction
in Medicare reimbursement currently available for our products would reduce our revenues. The
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (MMA) reduced Medicare
reimbursement rates for diabetic testing supplies, effective in 2005. The reduction in reimbursement rates
has had a negative impact on our revenues and earnings. Similarly, any increase in the cost of such
products would reduce our earnings unless there was a corresponding increase in Medicare
reimbursement. Our revenues and earnings could also be adversely affected by the imposition of more
stringent regulatory requirements for Medicare reimbursement or adjustments to previously reimbursed
amounts or by changes in co-payment amounts.

Competitive bidding for DMEPOS and supplies may reduce our revenues and earnings.

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (MMA) required the
establishment of a program for competitive bidding for certain items of DME and supplies. Under the
competitive bidding program, suppliers that wish to offer certain items and services to people with
Medicare will have to submit bids to Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), indicating the
prices at which they are willing to supply these items to beneficiaries. Currently Medicare, and
beneficiaries, pay for items based on a fee schedule that, in general, is based on the average payments
Medicare has paid for Durable Medical Equipment Prosthetics/Orthotics and Supplies (DMEPOS) items
in the past. The first phase of competitive bidding, which is expected to be effective as of July 1, 2008
and continue through March 31, 2010, and includes 10 metropolitan areas (known as competitive bid
areas or CBAs), includes mail order diabetic supplies. Currently, approximately 4% of our diabetes
customer base resides in the 10 CBAs included in the first phase of competitive bidding. CMS has also
proposed a national competitive bid for mail order diabetic supplies for 2010.

Competitive bidding will likely affect the mail order diabetic supply market in two ways. First,
the amount reimbursed by Medicare for mail order diabetic supplies will be reduced. I[n March 2008,
CMS announced that the Medicare reimbursement for mail order diabetic supplies will be reduced by
approximately 43% for the 10 CBAs in the first phase of competitive bidding. Second, the number of
suppliers will be reduced due to the competitive bid process, as CMS will award contracts only to those
suppliers who meet the applicable bidding and qualitative criteria. Qur operating results may be impacted
due to the reduction in the Medicare’s reimbursement for mail order diabetic supplies and will be
impacted if our bid is not selected for national competitive bidding related to mail order diabetic supplies.




We have invested significant capital and dedicated substantial resources to launch our insurance
services to Medicare prescription drug and managed care providers, which may not be successful.

Our ability to profit from our investment in our Insurance Services segment depends upon many
factors, including the ability of CIGNA to maintain their Medicare approved status; our ability to secure
contracts to provide services to other Medicare prescription drug and managed care providers; accuracy of
projections with respect to Part D enrollment and market opportunities; our ability to maintain our
existing patient base and our patients’ desire to take advantage of Part D services; our dependence on key
personnel; continued access to enrollment bases; and changes in Medicare, Medicaid, Tricare, Champus
and any other state or national-based reimbursement program. Revenue from CIGNA represented
approximately 38%, 40% and 12% of total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We have been in negotiations with CIGNA to further amend our agreement relating to the services we
provide to, and the compensation we receive from, CIGNA beginning in 2009. We believe this
amendment will extend the term of the agreement through 2012, but reduce the number of services we
provide to CIGNA and the corresponding fees associated with the services. These negotiations have not
been finalized. If CIGNA should fail to continue offering its CIGNA Medicare Rx Medicare Part D
program for any reason or if CMS should fail to apprave CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans in future vears,
or if CIGNA chooses a different vendor to provide services we currently provide, our ability to generate
revenue and profit from our Insurance Services segment would be significantly impaired.

If we do not have sufficient capital to fund additional advertising and/or acquisitions, our ability to
grow our business will be substantially diminished.

The revenue from our Medical Products business has been attributable, in large part, to the acquisition
of new patients primarily from television advertising, which is dependent on the availability of capital to
fund such advertising. At this stage in our development, we believe our medical product sales can be
increased through additional advertising or through the acquisition of the assets of small medical
businesses, including patient lists, If we do not have access to sufficient capital to fund such advertising
or acquisitions, our ability to maintain or grow our business will be substantially diminished. We can
provide no assurance that we will have access to sufficient capital to fund such advertising or
acquisitions, or that if we sought to raise additional capital from third parties through debt or equity
financings, that such capital would be available on acceptable terms or at all.

If we are unable to grow our business and manage growth successfully, we may not achieve
profitability.

We have focused on expanding our operations rapidly. This expansion has created significant
demands on our operational and administrative personnel and other resources, particularly our need for
working capital. Additional expansion in existing or new markets could strain these resources and
increase our need for capital, which may result in cash flow shortages. Our personnel, systems,
procedures, controls and existing space may not be adequate to support further expansion.

The profitability of our Medical Products business will decrease if we do not receive recurring
orders from patients,

Due primarily to the marketing and regulatory compliance costs associated with the initial patient
qualification, we generally incur losses and negative cash flow with respect to the first order for supplies




from a patient. Accordingly, the profitability of our Medical Products business depends on recurring and
sustained reorders. Reorder rates are inherently uncertain due to several factors, many of which are
outside our control, including changing patient preferences, competitive price pressures, patient transition
to extended care facilities, patient mortality and general economic conditions.

We could experience significantly reduced revenues and profit from sales of diabetes products if
improved technologies developed for glucose monitoring eliminate the need for consumable testing
supplies.

Approximately 48%, 48% and 56% of our revenue for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, was from
the sale of consumable diabetic testing supplies. Patients use these supplies to draw and test small
quantities of blood for the purpose of measuring and monitoring glucose levels. Numerous research
efforts are underway to develop more convenient and less intrusive glucose measurement techniques. The
commercialization and widespread acceptance of new technologies that eliminate or reduce the need for
consumable testing supplies could negatively affect sales in this market segment.

Due to our size and limited operating history, we depend substantially on certain key personnel.

Due to our size and limited operating history, our success depends to a large extent upon the
continued service of executive officers and key employees. The loss of the services of one or more of
these key employees could have an adverse effect on us. While none of our key personnel is
irreplaceable, the loss of the services of any of these individuals may be disruptive to our business. We
believe that our future success will also depend in large part upon our ability to attract and rerain highly-
skilled management personnel. Competition within the healthcare industry for such personnel is intense.
There can be no assurance that we will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel on terms
acceptable to us.

Certain executive officers have rights under employment agreements that could require us to make
substantial payments to them.

We have employment agreements with our Chief Executive Officer, Glenn M. Parker, M.D. and our
President and Chief Information Officer, Lewis P. Stone, and, prior to December 16, 2005, with Robert
Gregg, who served as our Chief Operating Officer until October 5, 2005. Besides the severance
provisions, which provide for severance payments in the event of termination of the key person by us or
by the key person for “good reason” equal to two times their current salary for Dr. Parker and Mr. Stone,
these employment agreements provide that if we or the key person terminate employment in several
specified events, that key person has the right to cause us to repurchase a number of shares of our
common stock owned by the key person with a value of up to $3,000,000 based on then current market
prices. Alternatively, we may elect to sell these shares of common stock to third parties or to register the
resale of these shares. In the event a sale or registration results in proceeds less than the key person is to
receive related to their right to sell, then we shall pay to the key person the difference between the
requested dollar amount and the proceeds of the sale. The occurrence of either of these events could
materially and adversely affect us as it may require us to make large cash payments to these individuals,
thus reducing the amount of cash available to us.

On December 16, 2005, we entered into a Separation Agreement and General Release with Mr. Gregg
terminating his employment as of that date. In addition to severance payments of $1.15 million, the
separation agreement affirmed Mr. Gregg’s ability to exercise his put right under his employment
agreement to request that we arrange for the purchase by a third party of up to $3,000,000 worth of
NationsHealth common stock from Mr. Gregg. Mr. Gregg has the right to require us to purchase up to




$3,000,000 worth of his NationsHealth common stock held by RGGPLS LLC (“RGGPLS”), the
controlling stockholder of NationsHealth, on Mr. Gregg’s behalf, provided that we are not required to
purchase more than $1,500,000 worth of such common stock in any calendar year. Under certain
circumstances, we may pay such amounts over a period of up to three years. In lieu of a cash payment,
we have the option to register such common stock for sale pursuant to a registration statement under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended or to sell such common stock pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements under the Act.

On April 4, 2007, Mr. Gregg partially exercised his Put Right to require us to purchase $750,000 of
our common stock beneficially owned by Mr. Gregg, representing 500,000 shares based on the closing
price of $1.50 per share on the trading day prior to the put notice. We notified Mr. Gregg of our intention
to cause such shares to be sold, as promptly as is reasonably practicable, pursuant to a registration
statement under the Act, or pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Act. To
the extent that these put shares are sold at a price less than the price on the date of the put, we will be
required to make a cash payment to Mr. Gregg for such shortfall amount. On July 16, 2007, in
connection with RGGPLS’s transfer to Mr. Gregg of 288,000 shares of the our common stock, Mr. Gregg
executed an acknowledgement that the proceeds from any sale by him of the 288,000 shares in the open
market or to any third party shall satisfy a portion of our obligation pursuant to the Put Right equal to the
number of shares sold multiplied by the per share price based on a 20-day average price. Based upon
shares sold by Mr. Gregg to date and the remaining shares under the April 4, 2007 put, we have accrued
approximately $398,000 at December 31, 2007 related to the estimated shortfall from the price on the date
of the put, which is due to Mr. Gregg upon the sale of the entire 500,000 shares.

If any of our information technology platforms malfunction, our business and profitability may be
seriously harmed.

Our business relies on proprietary information technology platforms that support the individual
enrollment of new medical supplies patients and Medicare Part D enrollees, fulfillment services,
document generation and collection, and patient and enrollee management. In addition, we use
information technology platforms that provide us with electronic connectivity to a large number of
pharmacies, shipping vendors and billing services. Due to the relatively high volume, the successful
operation of our proprietary information technology platforms is necessary for us to transact business
profitably. In addition, due to the highly regulated nature of the Medicare billing and payment process,
the successful operation of our proprietary information technology platforms is necessary for us to be able
to operate our business. A malfunction of the information technology systems will be disruptive to our
business operations and, based on the duration of such malfunction, could result in reduced sales or
profitability and the possible loss of patients.

We may have difficulties in achieving volume-based discounts or finding replacement supplies if we
lose any agreement with our suppliers of medical products.

We receive volume-based discounts under certain of our agreements with suppliers of medical
products. These discounts favorably impact our gross margins. Any failure to achieve or sustain volume-
based discounts under these supply agreements would negatively affect our profitability. In addition,
many of the supply agreements that we have with our suppliers are terminable without cause upon the
giving of a specified number of days' advance written notice. In the event that one or more of these
suppliers elects to terminate their supply agreements, we may have difficulties in finding replacement
suppliers, which may prevent us from purchasing a sufficient amount of supplies to satisfy the demands
of our patients.



Risks Related to Our Industry

If we do not comply with applicable government regulations, we may be prohibited from selling our
products and could experience significantly reduced revenues and profit.

The majority of the products that we sell are regulated by the FDA and reimbursed by other
regulatory agencies. If any of these agencies mandate a suspension of sales of products or a recall or
ceases to pay for certain supplies, we may lose sales and incur expenses until we are in compliance with
the regulations or change to another acceptable supplier.

As a Medicare supplier, we are subject to extensive regulation including, but not limited to, the DME
supplier standards and the federal healthcare program anti-fraud and abuse laws. While we believe that
our current and contemplated future operations materially comply with applicable regulatory
requirements, there are a number of common practices in the industry where the law is unsettled, and
there is no case law or definitive statements by the regulatory authorities concerning such practices.
Specifically, we, like many providers of diabetes supplies, obtain glucose monitors from certain
manufacturers without charge and, in turn, provide them to Medicare beneficiaries without charge. These
practices potentially implicate the federal Anti-kickback Statute and the civil money penalty provision
that prohibit payments made to induce Medicare beneficiaries to purchase, order or arrange any good or
service for which payment could potentially be made vunder a federal healthcare program. Additionally,
the Medicare anti-telemarketing law could potentially be implicated by our practice of calling Medicare
beneficiaries based on such beneficiaries’ initial telephone calls to an outsourced third party call-center.
In each case, we have evaluated the practices at issue and believe that we are in compliance with
applicable requirements. However, we cannot offer complete assurances that such practices could not be
challenged by government enforcement agencies. Any such chalienge, regardless of whether successful,
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

In addition, any negligence or mistake we make in processing Medicare reimbursement claims could
lead to recoupment of past payments and/or our suspension from the Medicare program.

We are also subject to state laws and regulations, including those governing pharmacy licensing and
DME supplier licensing, which are extensive and costly. Although we believe we are in compliance with
such state laws and regulations in all material respects, our failure to comply or failure to continue to
comply with these state laws and regulations could materially and adversely affect our business.

Any violation of the above-described federal and state laws may result in penalties that include loss or
prohibition of payment for services, loss of licenses, fines, and other civil or criminal penalties, including
exclusion from governmental programs.

The cost of efforts to comply with HIPAA regulations and the possible consequence of non-
compliance could adversely affect our operations and profit significantly.

HIPAA is comprised of several components that apply to certain aspects of our business, portions of
which would be considered a “covered entity.” If we do not continue to comply with existing or new
laws and regulations related to patient health information we may face potential criminal or civil
sanctions. New health information standards, whether implemented pursuant to HIPAA or otherwise,
could have a significant effect on the manner in which we handle healthcare related data and
communicate with payors, and the cost of complying with these standards could be significant.



Our accounts receivable are subject to significant collection risk due to third-party payors.

Seeking reimbursement from third-party payors is subject to rigorous requirements and involves
complicated paperwork. This may result in us suffering extremely long collection times, or not collecting
at all, on a significant portion of our accounts receivable. If we are unable to obtain reimbursement from
third-party payors, where permitted, we may seek payment of the entire account receivable from our
patient, who may not be financially capable of making the payment. Additionally, if any third-party
payor conducts a post-payment audit, the audit determination may materially adversely affect us if we are
required to refund significant sums of money.

Qur business could suffer from rising insurance costs, the unavailability of insurance or other
events.

The cost of insurance, including directors’ and officers’ insurance, workers’ compensation, product
liability, business interruption and general liability insurance, continues to represent a significant expense
to us. In response, within the purview of Medicare guidance, we may increase deductibles and/or
decrease some coverages to mitigate these costs. These increases, and our increased risk due to increased
deductibles and reduced coverages, could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

The sale of medical supply products entails the risk that users will make product liability claims
against us which could be expensive to resolve regardless of the outcome. Although we currently
maintain product liability insurance in amounts we believe to be commercially reasonable, product
liability insurance is expensive and may not be available in the future on acceptable terms or in sufficient
amounts, if it is available at all, particularly for certain classes of products. A claim brought against us,
even if covered by our insurance policies, could adversely affect our results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

As most of our operations are located in scuthern Florida, on an annual basis we are faced with the
possibility of incurring damages or business disruption as a result of a hurricane. Business interruption
insurance is expensive and may not be available in amounts that will fully protect us from such
occurrences, whether caused by casualties such as hurricanes or fire, or other events, which may or may
not be within our control.

Risks Related to Qwning Our Equity Securities
Future sales of our commaon stock may depress our stock price.

Most of the original shares of our common stock issued in the merger of Millstream Acquisition
Corporation and NationsHealth Holdings, LLC were issued as restricted securities within the meaning of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and have not been registered for resale in the public market.
However, these restricted securities, if such shares have not already become freely tradeable, are now
eligible for resale under Rule 144, subject to applicable volume, manner of sale, holding period and other
limitations of Rule 144. In addition, as of December 31, 2007, there were warrants and options
outstanding, including the underwriter’s option, to purchase 4,772,069 shares of common stock and notes
outstanding which are convertible into 2,286,585 shares of common stock. Consequently, at various
times in the future, a substantial number of additional shares of our common stock will be eligible for
resale in the public market. Sales of substantial numbers of such shares in the public market could
adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
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Voting control by our executive officers, directors and other affiliates may limit vour ability to
influence the outcome of director elections and other matters requiring stockholder approval.

Our executive officers, directors and affiliates control the rights to vote a majority of our commeon
stock. These stockholders can control substantially all matters requiring approval by our stockholders,
including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or other business combination transactions.
This concentration of ownership could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in our control or
discouraging a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us, which in tum could have a
material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock or prevent our stockholders from
realizing a premium over the market price for their shares of common stock. We are a “controlled
company” within the meaning of the NASDAQ Marketplace rules. As such, we are exempt from
NASDAQ’s requirements that would otherwise require our board of directors to have a majority of
independent directors, our board nominations to be selected, or recommended for the board’s selection
either by a nominating committee comprised entirely of independent directors or by a majority of our
independent directors and our compensation committee to be comprised entirely of independent directors.
Accordingly, you will not receive the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are
subject to all NASDAQ requirements.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal control in the future, we may not be able to
accurately report our financial results or prevent fraud. As a result, investors may lose confidence
in our financial reporting.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the Securities and Exchange Commission rules promulgated
thereunder require that we report annually on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting beginning with this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Among other things, we must perform
systems and processes evaluation and testing. We must also conduct an assessment of our intemal control
to allow management to report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as
required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In the future, our continued assessment, or the
subsequent assessment by our independent registered public accounting firm, may reveal significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal contrel, which may need to be disclosed in future
Annual Reports on Form 10-K. Disclosures of this type coutd cause investors to lose confidence in our
financial reporting and may negatively affect the price of our common stock. Moreover, effective internal
control is necessary to produce reliable financial reports and to prevent fraud. If we have deficiencies in
our internal control over financial reporting, it may negatively impact our business and operations.

Compliance with changing regulations relating to corporate governance and public disclosure may
result in additional expenses.

Keeping abreast of, and in compliance with, changing laws, regulations, and standards relating to
corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new regulations
established by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and revised NASDAQ Stock Market rules, have
required an increased amount of management attention and external resources. We intend to invest all
reasonably necessary resources to comply with evolving corporate governance and public disclosure
standards, and this investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses as well as a
diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities.

Our common stock may continue to have a volatile public trading price and tow trading volume.

The market price of our common stock has been volatile. Since our initial public offering in August
2003 through March 26, 2008, the price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Stock Market has ranged
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between $8.33 and $0.13. We may experience significant price and volume fluctuations in the future for
many reasons, some of which may be unrelated to our operating performance.

Many factors may have a negative effect on the market price of our common stock, including:

+  Public announcements by us, our competitors or others

« Regulatory developments concerning the availability of reimbursement pursuant to Medicare
« Public concern about the safety or efficacy of pharmaceuticals

« General market conditions and comments by securities analysts

«  Quarterly fluctuations in our revenues and financial results

« Low trading volume associated with the number of shares that are publicly traded

Anti-takeover provisions in our governing documents and under Delaware law may make an
acquisition of us more difficuit.

We are incorporated in Delaware. We are subject to various legal and contractual provisions that may
make a change in control of us more difficult. Our board of directors has the flexibility to adopt
additional anti-takeover measures.

Our charter authorizes our board of directors to issue up to 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock and
to determine the terms of those shares of stock without any further action by our stockholders. If the
board of directors exercises this power to issue preferred stock, it could be more difficult for a third party
to acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock. Our charter also provides staggered terms for the
members of our board of directors. This may prevent stockholders from replacing the entire board in a
single proxy contest, making it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us without the consent
of our board of directors. Our equity incentive plans generally permit our board of directors to provide
for acceleration of vesting of equity awards granted under these plans in the event of certain transactions
that result in a change of control. If our board of directors used its authority to accelerate vesting of
outstanding equity awards, then this action could make an acquisition more costly, and it could prevent an
acquisition from going forward.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law prohibits a corporation from engaging in a
business combination with any holder of 15% or more of its capital stock until the holder has held the
stock for three years unless, among other possibilities, the board of directors approves the transaction. OQur
board of directors could use this provision to prevent changes in management.

The provisions described above, as well as other provisions in our charter and bylaws and under the
Delaware General Corporation Law, may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire our company,
even if the acquisition attempt was at a premium over the market value of our common stock at that time.

If our common stock continues to trade at a per share price of less than $1.00, our common stock
will be subject to delisting from The NASDAQ Capital Market.

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Capital Market. On October 2, 2007, we were advised
by the NASDAQ Listing Qualifications Department that, for at least 30 consecutive business days, the
closing bid price of our common stock was below the minimum $1.00 per share requirement for
continued inclusion on The NASDAQ Capilal Market under Marketplace Rule 4310(c)(4). We were
provided until March 31, 2008 to regain compliance with this rule and, during this time, we will continue
to trade on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “NHRX.” If at any time before March 31,
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2008, the bid price of our common stock closes at $1.00 or more per share for a minimum of 10
consecutive business days, the NASDAQ Staff will re-evaluate if we comply with the rule. As of March
26, 2008, we had not regained compliance with the rule and the closing price of our common stock on
The NASDAQ Capital Market was $0.20 per share.

If compliance with the rule cannot be demonstrated by March 31, 2008, the NASDAQ Staff will
determine whether we meet The NASDAQ Capital Market initial listing criteria as set forth in
Marketplace Rule 4310(c), except for the bid price requirement. If we meet the initial listing criteria, then
the NASDAQ Staff will extend our compliance period by 180 days, and we will be deemed to be in
compliance with the rule if the bid price of our common stock closes at $1.00 or more per share for a
minimum of 10 consecutive business days at any time before September 27, 2008. If we do not meet the
initial listing criteria and are therefore not eligible for an extended compliance period, then the NASDAQ
Staff will notify us that our common stock will be delisted. As of March 26, 2008, we believe that the
Company does not currently meet the initial listing requirements. Prior to our common stock being
delisted, however, we will be given the opportunity to appeal to a Listing Qualifications Panel the
NASDAQ Staff’s determination to delist our common stock and the potential delisting will be subject to
the result of any such appeal. We are currently evaluating alternatives to resolve the listing deficiency.

If our common stock is delisted from The NASDAQ Capital Market, then the trading price of our
common stock would likely be adversely impacted. Additionally, delisting could reduce the liguidity of
any investment in our common stock, which would adversely impact our stockholders’ ability to purchase
or sell shares of our common stock. Further, a lack of liquidity may impair our ability to raise capital in
the future which, in the event additional capital is required to operate our business plan, could materially
and adversely impact our business, prospects and results of operations.

Ttem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Ttem 2. Properties.

Our corporate offices are located in Sunrise, Florida, where we lease approximately 43,000 square
feet of office space. These leases are scheduled to expire in August and September 2010. Our
distribution center for our Medical Products business, which is approximately 24,000 square feet, in
nearby Weston, Florida, is the subject of a lease that expires in September 2011. We also have a call
center facility in Fort Pierce, Florida occupying approximately 7,000 square feet of office space under a
lease that expires in October 2009. The primary location for our DC&E subsidiary is located in
Louisville, Kentucky, where we lease approximately 15,000 square feet of office and distribution space.
DC&E also occupies branch offices in Morehead City, North Carolina and Greenville, South Carolina,
and opened new facilities in Prattville, Alabama in January 2008 and Livonia, Michigan in March 2008,
all of which are leased facilities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in various disputes, governmental and/or regulatory inquiries, investigations and
proceedings that are deemed immaterial by us. Additionally, litigation may arise from time to time in the
ordinary course of business. The process of resolving such matters through litigation or other means is
inherently uncertain, and it is possible that the resolution of these matters could have a material adverse
effect on our business and consolidated financial statements.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2007, no matters were submitted to a vote of security
holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.
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PARTII

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Market Information

Our common stock, warrants and units were traded under the symbols “NHRX”, “NHRXW” and
“NHRXU?”, respectively, on The NASDAQ Capital Market from September 1, 2004 through January 10,
2006 and from December 13, 2006 to the present, and on The NASDAQ Global Market from January 11,
2006 through Decemnber 12, 2006. The table below sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated, the high
and low sales prices of our common stock, warrants and units as reported by The NASDAQ Stock
Market. Trading for our warrants and units ceased on August 24, 2007 upon the expiration of the
warrants.

Common Stock Warrants Units
High Low High Low High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2006

First quarter $7.96 $3.71 $2.95 $0.63 $11.00  $5.50
Second quarter $4.45 $1.94 $0.68 $0.20 $5.85 %230
Third quarter $3.24 $1.56 $0.43 $0.11 $481 $1.66
Fourth quarter $2.75 $1.05 $0.25 $0.06 $3.00 $1.11
Year Ended December 31, 2007

First quarter $1.93 $1.33 $0.14 $0.04 $3.00 $1.25
Second quarter $1.69 $1.28 $0.10 $0.02 $3.00 $1.01
Third quarter $1.59 $0.68 $0.14 $0.01 $2.10  $0.75
Fourth quarter $0.74 $0.29 n/a n/a n/a n/a

On March 26, 2008, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Capital
Market was $0.20 per share.

Holders of Record

As of March 26, 2008, we had approximately 44 stockholders of record for our common stock and
units.

Dividends
We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock or other securities and do
not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all future

earnings, if any, for use in the operation of our business. Additionally, under the terms of our credit
facility agreement, which expires on April 30, 2010, we are not permitted to pay dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors has authorized limited repurchases of the Company’s common stock for
purposes of paying withholding taxes to the Internal Revenue Service on behalf of participants of the
RGGPLS Holding, Inc. Bonus Plan & Trust. Additionally, restricted stock grants under the
NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan permit grantees to forfeit a portion of their shares to
satisfy employee withholding taxes. Repurchases of common stock are recorded as reductions to
additionat paid-in capital and repurchases during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 are shown in the
following table.

Total Average Total Number of Maximum Number

Number of Price Shares Purchased as of Shares that May

Shares Paid per Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Period Purchased Share Announced Plans Under the Plans

October 2007 - - - -
November 2007 9,423 $0.60 - --
December 2007 11,320 $0.69 -- --
Total 20,743 $0.65 - -

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In connection with our purchase of DC&E on September 4, 2007, we issued 473,933 shares of our
common stock with a fair value of $1.01 per share as of that date, or approximately $0.5 million.

The issuance of the shares referred to above were exempt from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof and Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview

We provide medical products nationwide to Medicare and managed care beneficiaries with a focus on
improving the delivery of healthcare to the approximately 44 million Medicare beneficiaries in the United
States. We also provide services, including marketing, insurance agent training and licensing, member
enrollment and service, distribution and billing and collections, to Medicare Part D and other Medicare
benefit plan providers.

Our patient service organization includes a large team of licensed healthcare insurance agents and
patient care representatives who are trained regarding all of the products and services we offer and are
available through toll-free phone numbers enabling us to service our patient base and those of our
Insurance Services clients. We offer a proactive compliance program to assist patients with their
treatment regimens. Our representatives are able to direct patients to sources where they can find more
information concerning their medical conditions and to direct patients to their physicians when
appropriate.

Medical Products Segment
Diabetes Supplies

It is estimated that about 9 million, Medicare beneficiaries have diabetes. We offer all major brands
of blood glucose meters, testing strips, lancing devices and control solutions. If qualified, our patients can
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receive diabetes supplies delivered to their homes nationwide. As a result of our acquisition of DC&E on
September 4, 2007, we also offer insulin pumps and pump supplies. For the year ended December 31,
2007, approximately 48% of our revenues were derived from the sale of diabetes supplies.

Pharmacy

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we began offering home delivery of prescription medications
through our pharmacy in Weston, Florida. Through the end of 2007, the primary source of our pharmacy
patients has been our mail-order diabetes patient base. For the year ended December 31, 2007,
approximately 8% of our revenues were generated from the sale of prescription medications.

Other Medical Products

Ostomy is an operation to create an artificial passage for bodily elimination. Though the ostomy
market is small relative to the diabetes market, the operational and compliance systems required to service
this population are similar to those used to service diabetes patients. For the year ended December 31,
2007, approximately 1% of our revenues were attributable to the sale of ostomy supplies.

Commencing in 2006, we expanded service to our existing patient base, by offering other medical
products, including impotency devices, heating pads, seat lifts, walkers and canes to our diabetes patients.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, approximately 2% of our revenues were attributable to the sale of
these other medical products.

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately 76,000 patients to whom we or DC&E have shipped
medical products and supplies in the last 15 months and that have not cancelled our service.

Retail Program

Through our retail program with Kmart Corporation (Kmart), which commenced in May 2004, we
offered diabetes supplies at over 1,100 Kmart pharmacies nationwide. Our contract with Kmart expired
by its terms on January 1, 2007 and was not renewed. We continued to service these patients at Kmart
stores through March 2007.

Discount Prescription Drug Card Services

Prior to October 1, 2005, we provided discount prescription drug cards, which were accepted at
pharmacies nationwide. Each time a cardholder saved money using one of these discount prescription
drug cards, we received a fee. We also earned manufacturer rebates when cardholders purchased certain
drugs using the card. Pursuant to our agreement with CIGNA, we stopped marketing discount
prescription drug cards in October 2005, With the onset of prescription drug coverage to Medicare
beneficiaries under Medicare Part D beginning January 1, 2006, the number of claims adjudicated with
our cards continued to decline throughout 2006, and on September 5, 2006, we sold the discount
prescription drug card business.

Insurance Services Segment

We entered into an agreement with CIGNA effective May 5, 2005, with an initial term through
December 31, 2009, to provide services to CIGNA in connection with CIGNA’s offering of its national
Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to Medicare beneficiaries. This arrangement combined
CIGNA’s pharmacy product portfolio and expertise with regard to clinical management programs and our
experience with regard to Medicare and enrolling individual Medicare eligible beneficiaries. Pursuant to
this agreement, the services we provided to CIGNA included marketing, insurance agent training and
licensing, member enrollment and service, distribution, billing and collections. We trained and developed
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a team of licensed healthcare insurance agents and began enrolling beneficiaries in CIGNA’s Medicare
Part D prescription drug plans throughout the United States on November 15, 2005, the first day of open
enroliment for the 2006 plan year.

On May 26, 2006, our agreement with CIGNA was amended and restated. This amended and restated
agreement modified the compensation terms to provide for a predictable service fee arrangement starting
with the 2007 plan year and continuing through December 31, 2009. Under the amended and restated
agreement, we continue to provide CIGNA with certain enrollee service activities and, at the option of
CIGNA, selected marketing and enrollment services. Furthermore, under the amended and restated
agreement, we may provide services, such as education, marketing, enrollment and member service, to
other Medicare Part D insurers and CIGNA may use other vendors to provide them with services for their
Medicare Part D program, provided, however, that CIGNA is required 1o pay us certain fees if they do not
meet specified thresholds of enrollees we service. In the fourth quarter of 2006, we began entering into
agreements to provide plan marketing, enrollment and advisory services to other Medicare prescription
drug and benefit providers. We have been in negotiations with CIGNA to further amend our agreement
relating to the services we provide to, and the compensation we receive from, CIGNA beginning in 2009,
We believe this amendment will extend the term of the agreement through 2012, but reduce the number of

services we provide to CIGNA and the corresponding fees associated with the services. These
negotiations have not been finalized.

Results of Operations

The following table contains certain revenue and expense amounts expressed in thousands of dollars
and as a percentage of total revenues for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005
$ % $ % $ %
Net product sales $ 46,070 59.4% $ 44,788 51.4% $ 68,688 78.5%
Prescription drug card revenue - 0.0 3,983 4.6 - 8,619 9.8
Service revenue 31,450 40.6 38,445 441 10,249 11.7
Total revenue 77,520 100.0 87,216 100.0 87,556 100.0
Cost of product sales 20,866 26.9 18,854 216 29,689 33.9
Cost of services 12,221 15.8 31,907 36,6 22,219 . 254
Gross Profit 44,433 57.3 36,455 41.8 35,648 40,7
Operating Expenses:
Patient acquisition and related costs 3,731 4.8 3,382 3.9 18,077 20.6
Patient service and fulfillment 9,544 12.3 8,286 9.5 14,427 16.5
General and administrative 24,753 319 27,940 32.0 26,323 30.1
Provision for doubtful accounts 1,991 2.5 3,625 4.2 7,575 8.7
Depreciation and amortization 6,419 83 5,231 6.0 1,626 19
Impairment of investment in joint
venture - - 1,292 1.5 - 0.0
Gain on sales of business lines (338) (0.4) {5,000) (5.7) {15,508) (17.7)
46,100 59.5 44,756 513 52,520 60.0
Loss from Operations {1,667) {2.2) (8,301) (9.5) (16,872) (19.3)
Other expense, net (4,259) (5.5) (2,977 (3.4) {2,947) (3.4)
Net Loss $(5,926) (7.6%) $(11,278) (12.9%) $(19,819) (22.7%)
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2007 Compared to 2006

Revenue. Total revenue decreased approximately $9.7 million, or 11%, to $77.5 million in 2007,
compared to $87.2 million in 2006. Service revenue from our Insurance Services segment decreased
approximately $7.0 million, or 18%, to $31.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
$38.4 million for 2006. The decrease in service revenue is primarily related to lower revenue from
services to CIGNA related to changes to our fee arrangement beginning with the 2007 plan year and
lower revenue from services to other insurance clients. Service revenue for the year ended December 31,
2006 included approximately $9.9 million of revenue related to initial year marketing and enrollment
services related to CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans. This decrease was partially offset by higher revenue
related to increased enrollment in CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans in 2007.

Revenue from our Medical Products segment, which includes prescription drug card revenue for the
2006 period, decreased approximately $2.7 million, or 6%, to $46.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2007, from $48.8 million for 2006. This decrease related to the sale of our discount prescription card
business on September 5, 2006, which contributed $4.0 million of revenue in 2006, partially offset by
$1.3 million higher net product sales. The increase in net product sales related to the Company’s
customer acquisition strategy commenced in the fourth quarter of 2006, including the acquisition of
DC&E on September 4, 2007, growth in the sales of prescription medications, launched in the fourth
quarter of 2006, and higher net sales of heating pads and impotency devices, partially offset by the normal
attrition of diabetes supplies customers and the termination of our contract with Kmart.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales related to our Medical Products segment increased
approximately $2.0 million, or 11%, to $20.9 million in 2007, compared to $18.9 million in 2006. The
increase primarily related to higher net product sales discussed above and a gain on the settlement with
one of our vendors that reduced our cost of product sales by approximately $1.0 million in 2006. Gross
margins on product sales were 54.7% in 2007, compared to 57.9% in 2006, primarily as a result of the
vendor settlement in 2006 and lower gross margins on sales of prescription medications relative to our
core diabetes business.

Cost of Services. Cost of services, which relates to our Insurance Services segment, consists of the
direct costs of providing services to CIGNA and other Medicare plan providers for their Medicare
insurance programs. Cost of services decreased approximately $19.7 million, or 62%, to approximately
$12.2 million for 2007, compared to approximately $31.9 million in 2006 primarily due to initial year
marketing and enroliment costs incurred in the 2006 period for CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans through
the conclusion of the initial open enrollment period on May 15, 2006. Gross margin for our Insurance
Services segment was approximately 61.1% for 2007, compared to 17.0% for 2006, primarily due to the
initial year costs incurred in 2006.

Gross Profit Margin. As a percentage of total revenue, overall gross profit margin was 57.3% for
2007, compared to 41.8% for 2006, due to the factors discussed above.

Patient Acquisition and Related Costs. Patient acquisition and related costs increased approximately
$0.3 million, or 10%, to $3.7 million in 2007, compared to approximately $3.4 million in 2006. Patient
acquisition and related costs include advertising, marketing and creative costs, call center services,
prescription drug card fulfillment services and sales payroll related to our Medical Products segment.
Advertising, marketing and creative costs and call center services related to our Insurance Services
segment are included in cost of services in our consolidated statements of operations. The increase in
patient acquisition and related costs in 2007, compared to 2006, was primarily a result of higher costs for
product shipped to customers but not billed to Medicare pending additional documentation and increased
payroll costs related to our expansion in sales force, partially offset by lower spending for media and
other patient acquisition costs. Advertising, marketing and creative costs decreased by approximately
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$0.4 million, to $1.4 million in 2007, from $1.8 million in 2006. Call center services decreased by
approximately $0.3 million, to $0.1 million in 2007, from $0.4 million in 2006. Additionally, the year
ended December 31, 2006, included approximately $0.7 million of expense for prescription card
fulfillment services related to the discount prescription drug card business that we sold on September 5,
2006. The decrease in patient acquisition and related costs was reflective of the continued reductions to
our marketing program in 2007 as a result of our focus on growth via acquisitions.

As a percentage of net product sales, patient acquisition and related costs were 8.1% in 2007, as
compared to 7.6% in 2006.

Patient Service and Fulfillment. Patient service and fulfillment expenses, which relate to our
Medical Products segment, consist primarily of costs to service our existing patients, including patient
service personnel, call center and telecommunications costs, fulfillment of patient mailings, and product
shipping costs, and are classified as operating expenses as they are not a direct cost of products sold.
Patient service and fulfillment expenses increased approximately $1.2 million, or 15%, to $9.5 million in
2007, compared to approximately $8.3 million in 2006. The increase in patient service and fulfillment
expenses was primarily due to the expansion of our operations infrastructure, including the acquisition of
DC&E. Patient service personnel costs increased by approximately $1.5 million, to $6.8 millien in 2007,
from $5.3 million in 2006. Fulfillment costs increased by approximately $0.2 million, to $0.7 million in
2007, from $0.5 million in 2006. Call center and telecommunications costs decreased by approximately
$0.3 million, to approximately $0.3 miltion in 2007, from $0.6 million in 2006. Product shipping costs
decreased by approximately $0.2 miilion, to approximately $1.7 million in 2007, from $1.9 million 2006.
As a percentage of net product sales, patient service and fulfillment expenses were 20.7% for 2007,
compared to 18.5% for 2006.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased approximately $3.2
million, or 11%, to $24.8 million in 2007, compared to approximately $27.9 million in 2006. The
decrease in general and administrative expenses is primarily due to lower corporate payroll and overhead,
which decreased by approximately $2.9 million, reflecting $0.9 million lower severance costs and $0.6
million higher stock compensation costs. Stock compensation costs in 2007 included approximately $1.6
million of expense associated with the acceleration of vesting of certain restricted stock awards. As a
percentage of total revenues, general and administrative expenses were 31.9% in 2007, compared to
32.0% in 2006.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts. The provision for doubtful accounts, which relates to our Medical
Products segment, decreased approximately $1.6 million, or 45%, to $2.0 million in 2007, compared to
approximately $3.6 million in 2006. As a percentage of net product sales, the provision for doubtful
accounts was 4.3% in 2007, compared to 8.1% in 2006. The decline in the provision for doubtful accounts
was due to our continued focus on improving our billing and collection practices.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $1.2 million,
or 23%, to $6.4 million in 2007, compared to approximately $5.2 million in 2006. The increase in
depreciation and amortization was primarily due to increased depreciation and amortization of assets
acquired in 2007, including equipment, software, acquired customer lists and other intangible assets.

Gain on Sales of Business Lines. On September 5, 2006, we sold the assets relating to our discount
prescription drug card business for $6.0 million. The purchase price was subject to a potential downward
adjustment, of up to $1.0 million, based on the volume of claims processed by the buyer in connection
with the discount prescription drug card business through September 5, 2007. Pursuant to the transaction,
we recorded a gain of $5.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2006 and a deferred gain of $1.0
million, related to the potential purchase price adjustment. Based upon the actual claims volurne through
September 5, 2007, the final purchase price adjustment amounted to approximately $0.7 million, resulting
in an additional $0.3 million gain on sale of business line during the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Other Expense, Net. Other expense, net, which was almost entirely comprised of interest expense,
increased approximately $1.3 million, or 43%, to approximately $4.3 million in 2007, compared to
approximately $3.0 million in 2006. The increase was primarily due to the interest incurred on amounts
outstanding under the term loan originated in April 2007 and interest incurred under capital leases entered
into during 2007,

Net Loss. As a result of the factors discussed above, we incurred net losses of approximately $5.9
million and $11.3 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

2006 Compared to 2005

Revenue. Total revenue decreased approximately $0.3 million, or less than 1%, to $87.2 million in
2006, compared to $87.6 million in 2005. Our Insurance Services segment, which was launched in
September 2005, contributed $38.4 million to our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to $10.2 million for 2005. Service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 included
approximately $9.9 million of revenue related to initial year marketing and enrollment services related to
CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans and approximately $3.3 million of revenue from services to new
insurance clients for 2006. This increase was partially offset by $28.5 million lower revenue for our
Medical Products segment during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to 2005. Approximately
$18.7 million of the decline related to the sale of our respiratory division on September 2, 2005.
Additionally, revenue from sales of diabetes supplies was lower by approximately $6.2 million, primarily
as a result of significantly reduced marketing and attrition of our patient base, partially offset by increased
revenue from improvements in our billing processes during 2006. The decrease was also partially offset
by offering heating pads, impotency devices, insulin and syringes and oral medications to our Medicare
Part B patient base during 2006, which contributed approximately $1.0 million to net product sales for
2006. Prescription drug card revenue was $4.6 million lower for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to 2005 due to the discontinuation of marketing of the drug card in October 2005, the
availability of prescription drug coverage to Medicare beneficiaries under Medicare Part D beginning
January 1, 2006, and, ultimately, the sale of the discount prescription drug card business on September 5,
2006.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales related to our Medical Products segment decreased
approximately $10.8 million, or 36%, to $18.9 million in 2006, compared to approximately $29.7 million
in 2005. The decrease primarily related to lower net product sales discussed above and a gain on the
settlement with one of our vendors that reduced our cost of product sales by approximately $1.0 million
in 2006. Gross margins on product sales were 57.9% in 2006, compared to 56.8% in 2005, primarily as a
result of the vendor settlement in 2006 and reduced unit costs negotiated with a new supplier for diabetes
supplies, partially offset by the change in product mix primarily from the sale of the respiratory division.

Cost of Services. Cost of services, which relates to our Insurance Services segment launched in the
third quarter of 2005, consisis of the direct costs of providing services to CIGNA and other Medicare plan
providers for their Medicare insurance programs. Cost of services increased approximately $9.7 million,
or 44%, to approximately $31.9 million for 2006, compared to approximately $22.2 million in 2005, of
which approximately $20.9 million related to the fourth quarter of 2005. The increase in cost of services
in 2006 primarily related to a full year of providing services related to CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans as
well as services provided to new insurance clients during the year. Gross margin for our Insurance
Services segment was approximately 17.0% for 2006, compared to a negative margin of 116.8% in 2005,
primarily due to the taunch of our Insurance Services segment during the 2005 period and start-up costs
related to CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans.

Gross Profit Margin. As a percentage of total revenue, overall gross profit margin was 41.8% for
2006, compared to 40.7% for 2005, due to the factors discussed above.
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Patient Acquisition and Related Costs. Patient acquisition and related costs decreased approximately
$14.7 million, or 81%, to $3.4 million in 2006, compared to approximately $18.1 million in 2005, Patient
acquisition and related costs include advertising, marketing and creative costs, call center services and
prescription drug card fulfillment services related to our Medical Products segment. Advertising,
marketing and creative costs and call center services related to our Insurance Services segment are
included in cost of services in our consolidated statements of operations. Advertising, marketing and
creative costs decreased by approximately $6.2 million, to $1.8 million in 2006, from $8.0 million in
2005. Call center services decreased by approximately $3.4 million, to $0.4 million in 2006, from $3.8
million in 2005. Fulfillment services decreased by approximately $1.9 million, to $0.7 million, in 2006,
from $2.6 million in 2005. The decrease in patient acquisition and related costs was reflective of the
significant reductions to our marketing program in 2006 as a result of our focus on the initial year
enrollment period for CIGNA’s Medicare Part D plans. Improvements in our billing processes in 2006
that resulted in a lower percentage of shipments that are not billed also served to decrease patient
acquisition and related costs.

As a percentage of net product sales, patient acquisition and related costs were 7.6% in 2006, as
compared to 26.3% in 2005.

Patient Service and Fulfillment. Patient service and fulfillment expenses, which relate to our
Medical Products segment, consist primarily of costs to service our existing patients, including patient
service personnel, call center and telecommunications costs, fulfillment of patient mailings, and product
shipping costs, and are classified as operating expenses as they are not a direct cost of products sold.
Patient service and fulfillment expenses decreased approximately $6.1 million, or 43%, to $8.3 million in
2006, compared to approximately $14.4 million in 2005. The decrease in patient service and fulfillment
expenses was primarily due to lower sales volume related to the sale of our respiratory business and other
factors discussed above and lower shipping costs derived from switching carriers during 2005. Patient
service personnel costs amounted to approximately $5.3 million and $8.0 million in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Fulfillment costs amounted to approximately $0.5 million and $1.1 million in 2006 and
2005, respectively. Call center and telecommunications costs were approximately $0.6 million and $1.2
million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Product shipping costs amounted to approximately $1.9 million
and $4.0 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

As a percentage of net product sales, patient service and fulfillment expenses were 18.5% for 2006,
compared to 21.0% for 2005. As a percentage of total revenues, patient service and fulfillment expenses
were 9.5% in 2006, as compared with 16.5% in 2005.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses increased approximately $1.6
million, or 6%, to $27.9 million in 2006, compared to approximately $26.3 million in 2005. The increase
in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to higher corporate payroll and overhead, which
increased by approximately $2.1 million, including severance costs of approximately $1.7 million and
stock compensation costs of approximately $2.3 million, partially offset by approximately $0.5 million of
lower professional fees. As a percentage of total revenues, general and administrative expenses were
32.0% in 2006, compared to 30.1% in 2005.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts. The provision for doubtful accounts, which relates to our Medical
Products segment, decreased approximately $4.0 million, or 52%, to $3.6 million in 2006, compared to
approximately $7.6 million in 2005. As a percentage of net product sales, the provision for doubtful
accounts was 8.1% in 2006, compared to 11.0% in 2005. The decline in the provision for doubtful
accounts was due to lower product sales volume, related to the sale of our respiratory business and other
factors discussed above, and our continued focus on improving our billing and collection practices.
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Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $3.6
million, or 222%, to $5.2 million in 2006, compared to approximately $1.6 million in 2005, The increase
in depreciation and amortization was primarily due to our investments in software and equipment to
support our growth and the amortization of the CIGNA contract intangible.

In conjunction with our agreement with CIGNA, on November 4, 2005, CIGNA purchased from the
Company 303,030 shares of our common stock for $6.60 per share, which was below the market price for
the stock of $7.88 per share on such date, and we issued to CIGNA warrants to purchase 2,936,450 shares
of our common stock at $6.60 per share. The fair value of the warrants and the discount from the fair
value of the common stock on the date of purchase, totaling approximately $16.2 million, has been
recorded as an intangible asset and is shown, net of accumutated amortization, as a customer contract
intangible in our consolidated balance sheets. The asset is being amortized over approximately 50 months
on a straight-line basis from the date of issuance through the remaining term of the agreement.

Impairment of Investment in Joint Venture. During 2006, our Specialty Rx joint venture was
dissolved and we received the return of the $1.53 million we invested in 2005. In conjunction with the
dissolution, we agreed to pay a termination fee of $1.5 million in the form of a non-interest bearing
promissory note maturing on February 21, 2008. We recorded impairment charges totaling $1.3 million
representing the net present value of the promissory note issued for the termination fee.

Gain on Sales of Business Lines. On September 5, 2006, we sold our discount prescription drug
card business for $6.0 million. The purchase price is subject to a potential downward adjustment, of up to
$1.0 million, based on the volume of claims processed by the buyer in connection with the discount
prescription drug card business through September 5, 2007. Pursuant to the transaction, we recorded a
gain of $5.0 million during 2006 and a liability of $1.0 million related to the potential purchase price
adjustment. Based upon the actual claims volume through September 5, 2007, the final purchase price
adjustment amounted to approximately $0.7 miilion, resulting in an additional $0.3 million gain on sale of
business line during the year ended December 31, 2007.

On September 2, 2005, we sold the respiratory division of our Medical Products segment (including
its respiratory-related inventory) for approximately $16.0 million. Pursuant to the transaction, we
recorded a gain of approximately $15.5 million during 2005.

Other Expense, Net. Other expense, net, which was almost entirely comprised of interest expense,
amounted to approximately $3.0 million in 2006, compared to approximately $2.9 million in 2005. The
increase in interest expense was primarily due to the issuance of $15.0 million of convertible notes on
February 28, 2005, partially offset by lower average outstanding balances on our line of credit during the
year.

Net Loss. As a result of the factors discussed above, we incurred net losses of approximately $11.3
million and $19.8 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Since our inception, we have used significant amounts of cash in our operations and have incurred net
losses of approximately $5.9 million, $11.3 million and $19.8 million for the years ended December 31,

2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, we had unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents of approximately $1.9 million and negative working capital of approximately $1.6 million.
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For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we used approximately $0.6 million, $19.7
million and $21.2 million of net cash in operating activities, respectively. Our use of cash in operating
activities in 2007 primarily relates to an increase in accounts receivable, primarily due to a change in the
timing of invoicing to CIGNA related to the service fee arrangement effective for the 2007 Medicare Part
D plan year and growth in net product sales, offset by a decrease in accounts payable and accrued
expenses. The use of cash in operating activities in 2005 and 2006 was primarily due to our overall
efforts to expand our business operations, including the launch of our Insurance Services segment in
2005.

In the year ended December 31, 2007, we used approximately $6.4 million of net cash in investing
activities related to the acquisition of DC&E and the acquisition of the assets of small medical equipment
businesses, including inventory and customer lists, as well as property and equipment to support the
growth of our business and improve operational efficiency. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and
20035, investing activities provided net cash of approximately $8.1 million and $11.7 million, respectively.
Cash provided by investing activities in 2006 primarily related to the sale of our discount prescription
drug card business and the dissolution of our Specialty Rx joint venture, partially offset by the acquisition
of property and equipment. In 2005, investing activities provided cash from the sale of our respiratory
division, partially offset by the acquisition of property and equipment to support the growth of our
business and the investment in our Specialty Rx joint venture.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we obtained approximately $4.7 million,
$1.8 million and $20.7 million, respectively, of net cash from financing activities. For 2007 net cash
from financing activities primarily related to draws under our new term loan, described below. Cash
provided by financing activities in 2006 primarily related to proceeds from the exercise of 399,920
warrants. In 2005, we issued $15.0 million of convertible notes, 576,927 shares of unregistered common
stock for $3.5 million to CIGNA and US Bio, and generated proceeds of $3.7 million related to the
exercise of 737,205 warrants.

We have a revolving credit agreement in the principal amount of up to $10.0 million. The borrowing
availability under the revolving credit agreement, which matures on April 30, 2010, is limited by a
borrowing base formula based upon our eligible receivables and inventory. As of December 31, 2007, the
balance outstanding on the line was $2.5 million and the unused portion available under the revolving line
of credit was approximately $4.3 million, of which $1.5 million was reserved for the repayment of the
promissory note to US Bio as described below.

On April 11, 2007, our revolving credit agreement was amended and restated to, among other things,
add a $7.0 million multi-draw term loan to the credit facility. On April 11, 2007, $1.5 millien in proceeds
from the term loan were funded into a restricted deposit account to serve as collateral for the facility as
required under the amended and restated agreement. The remaining $5.5 million of the term loan is
restricted in use to finance the acquisition of certain assets of diabetic supply companies, including
customer lists, inventory and other assets, and is to be drawn upon from time to time for such purposes.
Through December 31, 2007, we borrowed approximately $5.3 million under the term loan facility for
such acquisitions and the total amount outstanding under the term loan as of December 31, 2007, was
approximately $6.8 million. Interest on the outstanding principal balance of the term loan is payable
monthly at the higher of prime plus 1.0% or 5%. Payment of the principal balance outstanding under the
term loan was to be made on a straight-line basis, according to an amortization schedule, in 29
consecutive monthly installments, commencing on January 1, 2008. The amended and restated agreement
also adjusted the financial covenants of the credit facility and added a covenant related to our diabetic
patient count. On November 13, 2007, the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was amended
to adjust the financial covenants to account for the Company’s actual and projected financial results. As
of December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all applicable financial covenants under the
agreement.
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On February 1, 2008, our revolving credit agreement was amended to, among other things,
temporarily increase the percentage of eligible accounts receivable available under the borrowing base
through the end of 2008, increase the inventory availability under the borrowing base, and defer the due
dates of the instaliment payments under the term loan through June 30, 2008. The increases in the
advance rates for eligible accounts receivable and inventory borrowing availability had the impact of
increasing availability under the revolving line of credit by approximately $2.3 million.

On March 27, 2008, the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was further amended to
adjust the financial covenants to account for our actual and projected financial results. In connection with
the amendment, the annual interest rate on the revolving line of credit was increased to the higher of
prime plus 3% or 8.25%, and the annual interest rate on the Term Loan was increased to the higher of
prime pius 4.5% or 9.75%, effective as of the amendment date.

On February 28, 2005, we issued secured convertible notes with $15.0 million in principal value (the
Notes) maturing on February 28, 2012, to MHR Capital Partners LP and two affiliated entities (the
Holders). The Notes have a stated fixed annual interest rate of 7.75%, payable monthly and are secured
by substantially all our assets, but are subordinated to borrowings under our credit facility. The Notes
may be subordinated to future indebtedness not to exceed $20.0 million in the aggregate unless we
achieve certain performance criteria as specified in the Notes, in which case the amount of senior debt
may not exceed $25.0 million. The terms of the Notes allow the Holders, at their discretion, to convert all
or part of the Notes into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $6.56 per share, subject to
adjustment for anti-dilution, which is limited and capped, as described in the Notes. In addition, the
Notes will accelerate to maturity upon the occurrence of a default on the Notes by us.

In August 2005, we entered into a joint venture with US Bio to develop and operate a specialty
pharmacy business. US Bio and we determined that the terms of the program subsequently established by
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services were not economically viable and on September 27,
2006, we entered into an agreement with US Bio to dissolve the joint venture. As a condition of the
dissolution agreement, we agreed to pay a termination fee to US Bio in the amount of $1.5 million,
evidenced by a non-interest bearing promissory note to US Bio that matured, and was repaid, on February
21, 2008.

On February 5, 2007, as amended on June 29, 2007 and on August 24, 2007, we entered into a lease
agreement for certain telecommunications equipment and computer software. The lease, which provides
for monthly payments of approximately $75,000 through July 31, 2010, is being accounted for as a capital
lease. As of December 31, 2007, the related capital lease obligation totaled approximately $2.0 million.

On September 4, 2007, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of DC&E. At
closing, we paid cash of $2.5 million and issued 473,933 unregistered shares of our common stock. We
may also be obligated to pay additional cash consideration totaling up to $4,500,000 if revenue associated
with DC&E’s operations in 2008, 2009 and 2010 exceed certain targets.

On September 2, 2005, we sold our respiratory division for a total of approximately $16.0 million.
Additionally, on September 5, 2006, we sold our discount prescription drug card business for $6.0
million. The purchase price for the sale of the discount prescription drug card business was subject to a
potential downward adjustment, of up to $1.0 million, based on the volume of claims processed by the
buyer in connection with the discount prescription drug card business through September 5, 2007, Based
upon the actual claims volume through September 5, 2007, the final purchase price adjustment amounted
to approximately $0.7 million. Management believes that additional opportunities are available to raise
cash from the sale of a portion of our assets.

During 2006 and 2007, we implemented plans to restructure and streamline our management

organization and reduce our workforce in order to increase both our cost effectiveness and profitability.
We would, if considered necessary, be able to further reduce operating costs associated with discretionary
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patient acquisition activities and other operating costs to mitigate the effects of any temporary cash flow
shortages.

We believe that our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, and other available financing sources, will
be sufficient to meet working capital and capital expenditure needs for business operations for the next 12
months. Factors which could negatively affect our liquidity include a reduction in the demand for our
products, a reduction in Medicare reimbursement for our products, as well as those factors set forth in
Item 1A entitled “Risk Factors”.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements
As of December 31, 2007, we did not have any significant off-balance-sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows are based
upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. To prepare these financial statements we
are required to make significant estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. These items
are regularly monitored and analyzed by management for changes in facts and circumstances, and
material changes in these estimates could occur in the future. These estimates include assessing the
allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns and allowances, determination of appropriate Medicare
reimbursement rates and estimating contractual allowances against revenue and accounts receivable.
Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they become known. We base our estimates on
historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ materially from the estimates if past experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate.

While all accounting policies impact the financial statements, certain policies may be viewed as
critical. Critical accounting policies are those that are both most important to the portrayal of financial
condition and results of operations and that require management’s most subjective or complex judgments
and estimates. We believe the policies that fall within this category are our policies on revenue
recognition and accounts receivable, allowances for doubtful accounts and patient acquisition and related
COSts.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable
Medical Product Sales

We record revenue for our Medical Products segment at amounts expected to be collected from
Medicare, other third-party payors, and directly from patients. We analyze various factors in determining
revenue recognition, including, review of specific transactions, current Medicare regulations and
reimbursement rates, and the credit-worthiness of patients. We recognize revenue related to product sales
upon shipment of patient orders, provided that risk of loss has passed to the patient and the required
written forms to bill Medicare, other third party payors and patients have been received and verified.
Where applicable, contractual adjustments are recorded for the difference between reimbursement
amounts and revenue recorded per the billing system. Revenue is not recognized for product shipments
until that period in which the required documentation has been collected and verified. The costs related to
these billings in process, consisting of the cost of products shipped, are deferred and charged to cost of
product sales at the time the related revenue is recognized.
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Medicare reimbursement payments are sometimes lower than the reimbursement payments of other
third party payors, such as traditional indemnity insurance companies. Medicare reimbursements are
subject to review by appropriate government regulators. Revenue for Medicare reimbursement is
calculated based on govemnment-determined prices, and amounts billed in excess of the government-
determined reimbursement are excluded from revenue and, therefore, estimates of contractual adjustments
are not required for our Medicare billings. Medicare reimburses at 80% of the government-determined
retmbursement prices for reimbursable products and the remaining balance is billed to either other third
party payors or directly to patients. To the extent that estimated Medicare-allowable amounts used as the
basis for recording revenue differ from actual reimbursement, revenue is adjusted in the period
reimbursement is received, although such adjustments have historically not been significant.

We record sales allowances for estimated claim denials related to unsettled amounts from Medicare
and other third-party payors as a reduction of gross revenue. Allowances for claim denials are estimated
based upon historical claim denial experience, and the rate at which we provide for such allowances is
periodically adjusted to reflect actual claim denials and current trends. For the year ended December 31,
2007, a hypothetical change of 1% in the provision for claim denials as a percentage of gross product
sales would have resulted in a change in our revenue and net loss of approximately $0.4 million.

We also establish reserves for estimated product returns, which are recorded as a reduction of gross
revenue. Reserves for retumns are estimated based upon historical returns experience and current trends,
and changes in these factors could affect the timing and amount of revenue recognition in future periods.

Insurance Services

Revenue for our insurance services, including revenue recognized under our agreement with CIGNA,
is recognized when earned as the services are performed and is presented in our consolidated statements
of operations as service revenue. Revenue recognition is based upon the contractual fee and/or
reimbursement provisions, and adjustments to recorded revenue have historically not been significant.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated net of estimated allowances for doubtful accounts, which are
established based upon historical experience and current trends. In establishing the appropriate provisions
for accounts receivable balances, management makes assumptions with respect to future collectibility.
We base our estimates of accounts receivable collectibility on our historical collection and write-off
experience, our credit policies, and our analysis of accounts receivable by aging category within each
payor class. Changes in judgment regarding these factors will cause the level of accounts receivable
allowances to be adjusted.

Accounts receivable related to our Medical Products segment consist primarily of amounts due from
1) Medicare, 2) secondary insurance and other third-party payors, and 3) patients. The typical collection
process begins with the electronic submission of a claim to Medicare or other primary insurance carrier,
for which a response (and payment) is obtained within 45 to 60 days. Any claim denials are generally
acted upon within a 30-day period following the response and, where applicable, corrected claims are
submitted to Medicare or third-party insurance carriers. A response (and payment) for amounts billed to
secondary and other third-party insurance carriers generally occurs within 30-45 days of submission of
the claim. On a monthly basis, an aging of outstanding third-party payor balances is generated and
worked by collection personnel, including contacting the patient and/or insurance company in an attempt
to determine why payment has not been remitted and obtain payment from the respective responsible
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party. When applicable, corrected claims are submitted to the insurance carrier. Collection personnel
also continually analyze patients’ accounts and patient statements are generated and sent out monthly.
QOutbound calls are periodically made to patients with outstanding balances greater than 5500 in an
attempt to obtain payment.

The collection process is time consuming and complex and typically involves the submission of
claims to multiple payors whose payment of claims may be dependent upon the payment of another
payor. As a result, our collection efforts may be active for up to 24 months from the initial billing date.
In accordance with applicable regulatory requirements, we make reasonable and appropriate efforts to
collect our accounts receivable, including deductible and co-payment amounts, in a consistent manner for
all payor classes. Uncollectible account balances for all payor classes are written off after remaining
unpaid for a period of 24 months. Balances that are determined to be uncollectible prior to the passage of
24 months from the last billing date are written off at the time of such determination.

We perform eligibility and insurance verification on patients prior to the shipment of products and
submission of a claim. As a result, we do not have amounts that are pending approval from third-party
payors outside of the typical review process for submitted claims.

The following tables set forth our gross accounts receivable balances outstanding by aging category
for each major payor source as of December 31, 2007 (in thousands):

Aging of Accounts Receivable as of December 31, 2007

<30 31-60 61-120 >120

Payor Days Days Days Days Total

Medicare $ 1,924 § 276 $ 490 $ 1,611 $ 4,301
Commercial parties and Medicaid 1,862 935 772 4,165 7,734
Patients 273 216 392 2,920 3,801
Other (1) 3,071 58 - 2 3,131
Total gross accounts receivable $ 7,130 $ 1,485 $ 1,654 $ 8,698 18,967
Less: Allowances _ 7,974
Accounts receivable, net _ $10,993
(N Primarily represents amounts due from CIGNA and other clients of our Insurance Services

segment.
Patient Acquisition and Related Costs

Patient acquisition and related costs represent the costs we incur in the development of cur medical
products patient base, including various media advertising. In accordance with AICPA Statement of
Position (SOP) No. 93-7, Reporting on Advertising Costs, we expense such advertising costs as incurred.
Direct-response advertising costs meeting the capitalization criteria of SOP 93-7 are required to be
reported as an asset and amortized over the future benefit period. We do not meet the criteria for
capitalization as we are not able to demonstrate a direct link between specific sales to patients and
specific advertising expenditures such that it is reasonable to conclude that the advertising will result in
probable future benefits (probable future revenue). This accounting treatment generally results in
advertising expenses being charged to earnings in periods prior to the recognition of the associated
revenue.

The costs of acquiring patient lists are capitalized as an intangible asset and amortized over their

expected lives of four years, with 35% amortized in the first year and the remaining 65% amortized on a
straight-line basis over the succeeding three years.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB} issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN
48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement criteria for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expecied to be taken in a tax retumn.
FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007.
The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on our operating results, cash flows or financial
position.

In September 2006, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 requires the
disclosure of fair value of financial instruments according to a fair value hierarchy. Additionally, certain
disclosures are required regarding instruments within the hierarchy, including a reconciliation of the
beginning and ending balances for each major category of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, except for non-financial assets and liabilities, for
which SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The adoption of
this standard is not expected to have a material impact on our operating results, cash flows or financial
position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to report selected financial assets and liabilities at
fair value and is effective for fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007. The adoption of this
standard is not expected to have a material impact on our operating results, cash flows or financial
position.

Notice From NASDAQ

On October 2, 2007, we were advised by the NASDAQ Listing Qualifications Department that for at
least 30 consecutive business days, the closing bid price of our common stock was below the minimum
$1.00 per share requirement for continued inclusion on The NASDAQ Capital Market under Marketplace
Rule 4310(c)(4).

We were provided until March 31, 2008 to regain compliance with the NASDAQ Marketplace Rule
4310(c)(4) and, during this time, we will continue to trade on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the
symbol “NHRX”. If compliance with the applicable rule cannot be demonstrated by March 31, 2008, the
NASDAQ Staff will determine whether we meet The NASDAQ Capital Market initial listing criteria as
set forth in Marketplace Rule 4310(c), except for the bid price requirement. As of March 26, 2008, we
believe that the Company does not currently meet the initial listing requirements. 1f we meet the initial
listing criteria, the NASDAQ Staff will grant an additional 180 calendar day compliance period. If we are
not eligible for an additional compliance period, the NASDAQ Staff will notify us that our common stock
will be delisted. At that time, we may appeal the NASDAQ Staff’s determination to delist our common
stock to a Listing Qualifications Panel. We are currently evaluating alternatives to resolve the listing
" deficiency.
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Important Factors That May Affect Future Operations and Results

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements appear principally in the sections entitled “Business” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Forward-looking statements may appear in
other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K as well. Generally, the forward-looking statements in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K use words like “expect,” “believe,” “continue,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “opportunity,” “future,” “project,” and similar expressions.

The forward-looking statements include statements about our:

» Expected future operations, revenue, gross margins and expenses
o Credit facilities and projected cash needs
» Sales opportunities, strategic relationships and marketing plans

» Estimates of potential markets for our products and services, including the anticipated drivers
for future growth

e Assessment of the impact of future accounting pronouncements

Statements that are not historical facts are based on our current expectations, beliefs, assumptions,
estimates, forecasts and projections for our business and the industry and markets in which we compete.
The forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are not guarantees of
future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict.
Therefore, actual outcomes and rtesults may differ materially from what is expressed in such forward-
looking statements. We caution investors not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These statements speak only as of the date of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K, and we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise them, except as
required by law.

The following factors, among others, create risks and uncertainties that could affect our future or
other performance:

o  Our ability to successfully maintain our Insurance Services segment
+ Competitive bidding for DME and supplies
» Increases in the costs of medical products dispensed

» Qur history of operating losses and the possibility that we will incur significant additional
operating losses

e An ability to raise the capital that we will need to sustain our operations
e Our ability to attract new patients and retain existing patients
» Identification of, and competition for, growth and expansion opportunities

o Compliance with, or changes in, government regulation and legislation, or interpretations
thereof, including, but not limited to, pharmacy licensing requirements and healthcare reform
legistation, including HIPAA
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e Aninability to establish and maintain successful collaborative relationships could adversely
affect our ability to generate revenue

e Adverse developments in any investigation related to the pharmaceutical industry

e Competition and technological change that may make our products and technologies less
attractive or obsolete

¢ Our ability to obtain and maintain intellectual property protection for our technologies
e Adverse resolution of current or future lawsuits or investigations

e Significant fluctuations in our revenue and operating results, which have occurred in the past
and which could continue to fluctuate in the future

e Any loss or inability to hire and retain qualified personnel
e Our exposure to product liability in excess of our insurance coverage

¢ Any failure to maintain an effective system of internal controls in the future could adversely
affect our ability to accurately report financial results or prevent fraud

e Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may
result in additional expenses

¢ Qur common stock may continue to have a volatile public trading price and low trading
volume

¢ Anti-takeover provisions in our governing documents and under Delaware law may make an
acquisition of us more difficult

e Our common stock may be delisted from the NASDAQ Capital Market resulting in reduced
liquidity

As a result of the foregoing and other factors, we may experience material fluctuations in our future
operating results, which could materially affect our business, financial position, and stock price. These
risks and uncertainties are discussed in more detail in Section 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
entitled “Risk Factors”.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
NationsHealth, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NationsHealth, Inc. as of December
31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
(deficiency), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of NationsHealth, Inc. at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the

provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based
Payment.

/s/Emst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Mtiami, Florida
March 27, 2008
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NATIONSHEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAlENIS. ... $ 1,925 $ 4224
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $7,974 and $12,451,

TESPECUVEIY ovvrvrerer et ec e e sms b b e e 10,993 6,075
INVEMIOTY c.coviitiiiiirisrencrrscesrtr st sne b st sar s e s s s s s s s mra s nennases 2,557 1,636
Prepaid expenses and other current a88ets .......ccccoieiiimeiinins, 1253 1,313

Total current assets 16,728 13,248

Property and equUIPMENt, NEL ..ot sessnssmst st sessrsasrsasersrns 4,666 3,557
Customer contract intangible, NEt ... 7,755 11,632
Acquired CUSLOMET LISES, NEL .ovricre e s s s aean 3,090 363
Other intangible assets, NEE ..o iceercee s et s ans s 907 -
GOOAWIIL 1ot s s e b et eas s s e s an s e b emrerassrasnrases 1,075 -
ReSITICLEA CASN 1ovvviveeriviere e rre e e rermsens e se st cemres s st eas s sna e sanenenane 1,899 300
OUNET ASSELS, NET..iiviriiriiriiiiiiirirnrsiinssisssssesnstsssssasesarssarrerarerasssssrresbinsrrsessasseare 1,360 1,288
Total assets $ 37,480 S 30,388
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNS PAYEDIE +.vvrverreeceeeeeseeeceeceeeeteeeeeresecesecese e sss st ems bbb ssserab s s saens § 6314 $ 3,026
ACCIUEH EXPEINSES ....eeecerereeern s reesrensrrarsr s rnesssmssnsbsssrssiststsastsansonesinsssnessansasaens 4,553 9,054
Promiissory note payable, el ... 1,478 -
Current portion of long-term debt ... 2,810 -
Current portion of capital lease obligations .......coveeiriviinisnnn, 679 15
LANE OF CTEAIL oeeeeeeee e e e e rss b e 2,500 2,500
Total current liabilitics 18.334 14,595
Long-Term Liabilities:
Convertible notes, related party, Net .....c.ccoveeveviciccnnnnci e 7,715 6,316
LONE-tEI deBl ...t ecererrenerensreees e ren e s e en st et 3,980 -
Obligations under capital [825€S .....ocvicvvccscrieneeenicirr s s enerennns 1,396 2
Promissory note payable, Net ......cccvomevrenenciiniinininc i - 1,328
Other long-term Habilities ...coererereire e e esrsestsesisanes 1,212 780
Total long-term liabilities 14,303 8.426
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized;

NIOMIE SSUBH ..ottt sss e s e ne s eb gt nd s e ra s br e nr e -- --
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 250,000,000 shares authorized;

29,408,763 and 28,906,708 issued and 29,318,591 and 28,837,760

outstanding, TeSPECHVELY ....vc.ceereceeniceetrae e r e e 3 3
Additional paid-in €apital. ... ..oocorrorueie s 74,218 70,816
Accumulated defiCil ... (69,378} (63.452)

Total stockholders’ eqUILY ... 4,843 7.367

Total liabilities and stockholders’ SQUILY .....ocvrveerirrinineemrene s nesanereerenenes s 37,480 $_ 30,388

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONSHEALTH, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

{In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
Netproductsales................... . 5 46,070 § 44,788 $ 68,688
Prescription drug card revenue.................ocoeeiine, - 3,983 8,619
Service revenue........cooiiiiiiiiii e 31.450 38,445 10,249
77,520 87,216 87,556
Costof product sales.......ocooviiiiiiiiiiin e 20,866 18,854 29,689
Cost of services......c.coviviiiiiin 12,221 31,907 22,219
Gross Profit........coovveniiiin e e 44,433 36,455 35,648
Operating Expenses:
Patient acquisition and related CostS.......ooeviiviineninn 3,731 3,382 18,077
Patient service and fulfillment..................... o, 9,544 8,286 14,427
General and administrative................coooeiii e, 24,753 27,940 26,323
Provision for doubtful accounts.......................o.ee 1,991 3,625 7,575
Depreciation and amortization..................ccoiivin 6,419 5,231 1,626
Impairment of investment in joint venture................... -- 1,292 -
Gain on sales of business lines............................. (338) {5,000 (15,508)
46,100 44,756 52,520
Loss from Operations. .........oovvvvniiineiiie e ea (1,667) {8,301) (16.872)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest INCOME. .. ...oeeiiiiiiii e 155 257 150
Interest expense, related party .........oooveeviiiiiinnnen (2,708) (2,448) (1,878)
Interest eXpense. .. ..ot (1.706) (786) (1.219)
{4,259) (2.977) (2,947)
INEE LOSS. .ottt e e e e e ee e e e e $ (5,926) $.(11,278) $ (19.819)
Loss per share — basic and diluted............c..cooveniiinn $ (02D . 040) 3 (075)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic and diluted.. 28,330 27,893 26,343

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONSHEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
(In thousands)

Additional
Common Stock Paid-in Uneamned Accumulated
Shares Amount  Capital  Compensation Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 2004 26,175 § 3 $32,315 ] - $(32355) $(37)
Discount on convertible notes, related party - - 10,611 - - 10,611
Issuances of common stock... 577 - 3,888 - - 3,868
Repurchases of common stock (56) - (38%) - - (389)
Restricted stock awWards ........c.eeoeeecemmceececccnseenns 377 - 2,921 (2,761) - 160
Warrants issued 1o CIGNA ..., - - 15,768 - - 15,768
Warrant exercises 737 - 3,686 - - 3,686
Accelerated vesting of stock options............... - - 78 - - 8
Stock options issued to consultant................... - - 71 - - )
Net loss - - -- (19.819) (19.819)
Balance, December 31, 2005 3 68,949 (2,761) (52,174) 14017
[ssuances of common stock 52 - 395 - - 305
Repurchases of common stock (36) - (75) - - (75)
Restricted stock awards, net of forfeitures ..... 610 - 1,328 - - 1,328
WRITANE EXETCISES ... ereeeenearecencennrcnsecnssrnerenns 400 - 2,000 - - 2,000

Reclassification of unearned compensation
upon adoption of SFAS No. 123 (R).......... - - (2,761) 2,761 - -
Employee stock options, net of forfeitures..... - - 963 - - %03
Employee stock option exercises...........c.v.... 2 - 17 - - 17
NELOSS oottt cennes - - - = {01.278) (i1,278)
Balance, December 31, 2006 ...........ccoccnnnnane 28,838 3 70,816 - (63,452) 7,357
Issuance of common stock for acquisition ..... 474 - 479 - - 479
Repurchases of common stock.......ccccnninninnes 3D - (36) - - (306)
Restricted stock awards, net of forfeitures ..... 38 - 720 - - 720
Accelerated vesting of restricted stock ... - - 1,566 - - 1,566
Employee stock options, net of forfeitures.... - - 673 - - 673
= == = = {59261 (5926}

Balance, December 31, 2007 ....

22319 £ 3 $74218 i = 3{69378) 3488

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONSHEALTH, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
I L 15 $ (5926} $ (11.278) $ (19819
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash and cash equivalents used in
operating activities:
Gain on sales of business liNes...........orviiiii e cirrrnrrrrereerrarnrrnnrnns (338) (5,000) (15.508)
Provision for doubtful accounts. ..ot 1,991 3625 7.575
Provision for sales allowances and retums 1,459 2,210 2,086
Reserve for (recovery of} costs related to billings In process..........ocveeeevevennn 761 {280) 1,663
Depreciation and amMOrtiZation. ..........viivri et aeaier s araan 7151 5.747 1,709
AmOTtization of NOTE AISCOUNL.....cccecrreiiese v ermrere s sesssrere b rerae s samesssse s sas e emabens 1,549 1,177 787
Amortization of deferred loan costs and other non-cash interest charges. net........, 569 264 571
Stock-based cOmMpPenSation..........c.co.ccoveeeveeerveereeresennes 2,959 2,201 309
Impairment of Investment in JOINE VENTUIE. .o...vvviviriviviinii e s -- 1,292 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities;
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE. ...ttt re ettt semsamse s s (6,164} 3.115) (7.323)
RN 11 U (157 (351} 32
Prepaid expenses and other assets.........cvvvriiiiiiiiniiiiiieii s e e (1,122) 737 (2,220
Accounts payable and accrued EXPENSES. . vuvvverrvrrevrinrrrnre e (3,341) (15.644) 7.557
0T Ty 1 D £ )¢ 11 = U - (1,335} 1,335
Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities: (609) {19,660} (21.246)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of business lines...... ..ot - 7,600 14,400
Dissolution of {(investment iN) JOIML VENIUI . ... vttt ie e - 1.530 (1.530)
Maturity (purchases) of available for sale investments, net.........ocvevevevevvrernns - 923 (823)
Investment released fTOM ITUSE ...o.coee v ey e g e e e e e e e e erera e e . -- - 2,000
Acquisition of property and eqUIDIMENT. ......... vt ce e e ee e remeenns (1,056) (1.66%) (2.393)
Acquisition of Diabetes Care and Education, Inc., net of cash acquired............... (2,494) - -
ASSEl ACQUISIEIONS. . ... ittt iiieiiiiiia et e it sttt aatasatasa st iaa st s aearaas (2.856) (280) -
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in) investing activities: (6.406) 8104 11,654
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes. related party.........covevvvveviiiiinnnns - - 15,000
Proceeds from 1ssuances of common stock. ... ... - - 3,500
Proceeds from eXercise Of WaITANIS. ... ........cviiiiie i ieir e e vearaa i raeens - 2,000 3,686
DIraws O B JOAM. .ot e e e rre v s e e e e rrreas 6.789 - -
Deposit of restricted cash under credit facility ... {1.,500) - -
Net draws on (repayments of) lines of credit..............ooiiiiiii - 100 (119)
Payment of debl 1SSUANCE COSIS. ...\ ivivir it ieiiiriereerererarsrarsrsrrrrrrrrrens {100) (100) (S07)
Repurchases of commion SIOCK. .....ovvrviiiviviirrr e e e eeeesvree e (36) (75) (389)
Principal payments under capitai lease obligations..................ocovviiiiinninn. (437) (133) (112)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options............c.coooiciiiiiiii i, - i7 --
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities.................... 4,716 1,809 20,659
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents.............cooo {2,299) (9,747) 11,067
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year....................c. 4,224 13,971 2.904
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year........cooveviiiiir v veneeeieenrenn s eeaeeeans § 1,925 5_4224 $ 13971
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information: \
INterest Paid  ...oviriri i § 2034 § 1578 § 1,534
Non-cash Financing Activities:
Payment of bonuses With stock ... e b -- ) 395 b --
Issuance of promissory note for joint venture termination fee ........oovvivvnrreennns 3 = 51,500 b S
Assets acquired under capital leases...........coonnn e, § 2426 § = 5 262




NATIONSHEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2007

1. BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Business

NationsHealth, Inc. (“NationsHealth” or the “‘Company”} seeks to improve the delivery of healthcare
to Medicare and managed care beneficiaries by providing medical products and prescription related
services. NationsHealth provides home delivery of diabetes supplies, medications and other medical
products to patients across the United States. In addition to its Medical Products business, NationsHealth
also provides education, marketing, enrollment and patient service to Medicare prescription drug and
managed care providers. NationsHealth has an agreement with Connecticut General Life Insurance
Company (“CIGNA”} to service its Medicare Part D prescription drug plans nationally.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NationsHealth and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, NationsHealth Holdings, LLC, United States Pharmaceutical Group, LLC and Diabetes Care
& Education, Inc. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Reclassifications

Certain prior years' amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash at December 31, 2007 and 2006 includes a certificate of deposit collateralizing a
letter of credit for approximately $300,000 (see Note 16). Restricted cash at December 31, 2007 also
includes $1,500,000 serving as collateral under our credit facility (see Note 11), which is invested in a
short-term money market account with a financial institution.

Accounts Receivable

The Company does business and extends credit based on an evaluation of the financial condition of
third party payors and patients generally without requiring collateral. Exposure to losses on receivables is
expected to vary by patient due to the financial condition of each patient. A significant portion of
accounts receivable is due from Medicare, but also includes amounts due from other third party payors
and patients. The collection process is time consuming and complex and typically involves the
submission of claims to multipte payors whose payment of claims may be dependent upon the payment of
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another payor. As a result, collection efforts may be active for up to 24 months from the initial bilting
date. In accordance with applicable regulatory requirements, the Company makes reasonable and
appropriate efforts to collect its accounts receivable, including deductible and co-payment amounts, in a
consistent manner for all payor classes.

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowances for doubtful accounts and claim denials, which are
estimated based upon historical collection and claim denial experience and current trends. Allowances for
doubtful accounts are established through charges to bad debt expense, while allowances for claim denials
are recorded as a reduction of revenue. Uncollectible accounts are written off after all collection efforts,
and claim re-submittals, where appropriate, have been exhausted.

Inventory

Inventory consists of medical supplies, primarily diabetes testing and insulin pump supplies, and
medications. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, determined on the first-in, first-out, method, or
market.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Goodwill is not
amortized but is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their expected lives, The Company reviews its long-
lived assets, including intangible assets with finite lives, for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue related to product sales upon shipment of patient orders, provided
that risk of loss has passed to the patient and the required written forms to bill Medicare, other third party
payors, and patients have been received and verified. Revenue is recorded at amounts expected to be
collected from Medicare, other third party payors, and directly from patients. Where applicable,
contractual adjustments are recorded for the difference between reimbursement amounts and revenue
recorded per the billing system. Such adjustments are recorded as a reduction of both gross revenue and
accounts receivable. Revenue is not recognized for product shipments until that period in which the
required documentation has been collected and verified. The costs related to billings in process,
consisting of the cost of products shipped, are deferred in the Company’s consclidated balance sheet, and
are charged to cost of product sales at the titne the related revenue is recognized.

Revenue for Medicare reimbursement is calculated based on government-determined prices for
Medicare-covered items and is recognized at such reimbursement amounts. Amounts billed in excess of
the government-determined reimbursement prices are excluded from revenue. Medicare reimbursements
are subject to review by appropriate government regulators. Medicare reimburses at 80% of the
government-determined reimbursement amounts for reimbursable products. The remaining balance is
billed to other third party payors or directly to patients. Revenue received directly from Medicare, which
relates to the Company’s Medical Products segment, represented approximately 34%, 41% and 64% of
total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.
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Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company provided individuals with discount prescription drug cards,
which are accepted at over 50,000 pharmacies nationwide (the “Discount Prescription Drug Card
Business™). Each time a cardholder saved money using one of these cards, the Company received a fee
ranging from $0.70 to $1.30 per transaction. Revenue was recognized in the month the transaction
occurred. Additionally, the Company earned manufacturer rebates when cardholders purchased certain
drugs using the card. Revenue from manufacturer rebates was recognized when earned and the amount
fixed and determinable. These rebates, which amounted to approximately $217,000 and $457,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively, are included in prescription drug card revenue in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. On September 5, 2006, the Company sold the
Discount Prescription Drug Card Business (see Note 7). Accordingly, the Company recognized no
revenue from the Discount Prescription Drug Card Business for the year ended December 31, 2007,

Revenue related to the Company’s Insurance Services segment is recognized when earned as the
services are performed and is presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as
service revenue. The direct costs of providing contracted services, including advertising, marketing and
creative services, performed on behalf of these clients are shown as cost of services in arriving at gross
profit. Revenue from CIGNA, which is included in the Company’s Insurance Services segment,
represented approximately 38%, 40% and 12% of total revenue in 2007, 2006 and 2008, respectively.

Patient Acquisition and Related Costs

Patient acquisition and related costs represent costs incurred by the Company in the development of
its patient base. These costs are primarily comprised of advertising, promotion, call center and data
- collection expenses and the provision for costs of inventory shipped but never billed because all
documents required to bill Medicare have not been collected. Patient acquisition and related costs are
charged to expense as incurred because they are only indirectly associated with the sale of product and
services, and therefore not of a direct-response nature.

Advertising costs, which are included in patient acquisition and related costs and, to the extent related
to services revenue, in cost of services, are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs were approximately
$1,343,000, $9,064,000 and $12,717,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Patient Service and Fulfillment Expenses

Patient service and fulfillment expenses, which relate to the Company’s Medica!l Products segment,
consist primarily of costs to service existing patients, including patient service personnel, call center and
telecommunications costs, fulfillment of patient mailings, and product shipping costs. Product shipping
costs were approximately $1,736,000, $1,906,000 and $4,033,000 for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Loss Per Share

Loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common
equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Common equivalent shares consist of the incremental
common shares issuable upon conversion of the Company's convertible notes (using the if-converted
method), unvested restricted stock and shares issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants. The
shares tssuable upon conversion of the Company’s convertible notes and the shares issuable upon exercise
of the Company’s outstanding warrants, stock options, the underwriters’ option, and upon the vesting of
restricted stock have been exciuded from the calculation of diluted eamings per share for all periods
presented as their effect would have been antidilutive,
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The respective carrying vatue of certain on-balance-sheet financial instruments approximates their
fair value. These instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts
payable. Fair vatues were assumed to approximate carrying values for these financial instruments since
they are short-term in nature and their carrying amounts approximate fair values, or they are receivable or
payable on demand.

The fair value of the Company’s credit facility borrowings and promissory note payable is estimated
based on current rates offered to the Company for debt of comparable maturities and similar collateral
requirements, and approximates carrying value.

Based upon various factors, including borrowing rates and the market value for NationsHealth
common stock, the estimated fair value of the Company’s convertible notes as of December 31, 2007 was
approximately $10,865,000, compared to a carrying value of approximately $7,715,000.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and accounts receivable.

With respect to cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, the Company maintains deposit
balances at financial institutions that, from time to time, may exceed federally insured limits. The
Company maintains its cash with high quality financial institutions, which the Company believes limits
these risks.

The Company’s single largest account receivable balance is from Medicare, which the Company does
not consider to be a credit risk. The Company also has accounts receivable from CIGNA and other
insurance companies, which the Company does not consider to be significant credit risks.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN
48", “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement criteria for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure and transition. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of January
1, 2007. The adoption of this standard did not have an impact on the Company’s operating results, cash
flows or financial position.
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In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS No. 157"), “Fair Value Measurements.”
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 requires the disclosure of fair value of
financial instruments according to a fair value hierarchy. Additionally, certain disclosures are required
regarding instruments within the hierarchy, including a reconciliation of the beginning and ending
balances for each major category of assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, except for non-financial assets and liabilities, for which SFAS No.
157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s operating results, cash flows or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to report selected financial
assets and liabilities at fair value and is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s operating results,
cash flows or financial position.

3. LIQUIDITY AND PROFITABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

From inception and continuing through 2007, the Company has used significant amounts of cash in
its operations and has incurred net losses of approximately $5,926,000, $11,278,000 and $19,819,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively. As reflected in the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, the Company had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of
approximately $1,925,000 and negative working capital of approximately $1,606,000.

Management’s plans with regard to these matters encompass the following:
Credit Facility

The Company has a revolving line of credit agreement, as amended and restated on April 11, 2007
(see Note 11). As of December 31, 2007, the unused portion available under the revolving line of credit
was approximately $4,329,000, of which $1,500,000 was reserved for the repayment of the Promissory
Note (see Note 6).

On February 1, 2008, the credit facility was amended to, among other things, temporarily increase the
percentage of eligible accounts receivable available under the borrowing base through the end of 2008,
increase the inventory availability under the borrowing base, and defer the due dates of the installment
payments under the term loan through June 30, 2008. The increases in the advance rates for eligible
accounts receivable and inventory borrowing availability had the impact of increasing availability under
the revolving line of credit by approximately $2.3 million.

Cost Reductions

During 2006 and 2007, the Company impiemented plans to restructure and streamline its management
organization and reduce its workforce in order to increase both cost effectiveness and profitability.
Management would, if considered necessary, be able to further reduce operating costs associated with
discretionary patient acquisition activities and other operating costs to mitigate the effects of temporary
cash flow shortages.
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Sales of Lines of Business

On September 2, 2005, the Company sold its respiratory line of business for a total of approximately
$16,000,000 (see Note 7). On September 5, 2006, the Company sold its discount prescription drug card
business for $6,000,000, subject to an approximately $662,000 reduction (see Note 7). Management
believes that additional opportunities are available to raise cash from the sale of a portion of the
Company’s assets.

Summary

Management believes that the actions taken by the Company provide the opportunity for the
Company to improve liquidity and profitability, and that it has sufficient liquidity to continue as a going
concern. However, there can be no assurances that the Company will have adequate liquidity or that
profitability will be achieved.

4. CIGNA AGREEMENT

The Company entered into an agreement with CIGNA on May 4, 2005 to provide services to CIGNA
in connection with CIGNA’s offering of Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to Medicare
beneficiaries. This arrangement combined CIGNA’s pharmacy product portfolio and expertise with
regard to clinical management programs and NationsHealth’s experience with regard to Medicare and
expertise in enrolling individual Medicare eligible patients into healthcare programs. The services
provided by the Company to CIGNA under the original agreement encompassed virtually all aspects of
the non-claims administration of CIGNA’s Part D plans, including advertising and marketing for the
plans, member eligibility and enrollment processing, member service, communication and reconciliation
with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), and member billing and premium
collection.

On May 26, 2006, the Company and CIGNA entered into an Amended and Restated Preferred Vendor
Agreement (the "Amended and Restated Agreement"), which amended and restated the agreement
entered into on May 4, 2005. The initial term (the “Initial Term”) of the Amended and Restated
Agreement expires on December 31, 2009 and automatically renews for additional one-year periods (an
“Additional Period”) unless either party provides to the other party notice to terminate not later than July
1 of any Additional Period or the final year of the Initial Term. The Amended and Restated Agreement is
contingent upon the continued award of Part D contracts to CIGNA by CMS.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Agreement, the Company continues to provide certain member
service activities and, at the option of CIGNA, selected marketing and enrollment services in connection
with CIGNA’s Part D plans. In addition, under the Amended and Restated Agreement, the Company may
provide these services to other Medicare Part D insurers and CIGNA may use other vendors to provide
services for its Medicare Part D program, provided, however, that CIGNA is required to pay the
Company certain fees if CIGNA does not meet specified thresholds of enrollees serviced by the
Company. The Amended and Restated Agreement also modified the compensation terms among the
parties to provide for a predictable service fee arrangement starting with the 2007 plan year and
continuing until the end of the Initial Term. The Company's management has been in negotiations with
CIGNA to further amend the agreement relating to the services provided to, and the compensation
received from, CIGNA beginning in 2009, The Company believes this amendment will extend the term
of the agreement through 2012, but reduce the number of services the Company provides to CIGNA and
the corresponding fees associated with the services. These negotiations have not been finalized.

As was required under the Company’s agreement with CIGNA entered into on May 4, 2005,

NationsHealth discontinued all marketing of discount prescription drug cards on October 1, 2005 (see
Note 7).
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5. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On September 4, 2007, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of
Diabetes Care and Education, Inc. (“DC&E”). DC&E is a provider of insulin pumps, pump supplies and
blood glucose monitoring equipment and supplies through its three facilities in Kentucky, North Carolina
and South Carolina. DC&E also offers diabetes education to individuals with diabetes through its
American Diabetes Association recognized education programs. The acquisition was made as part. of the
Company’s strategy to add customers and expand product offerings that are complimentary to its diabetes
supplies business, and DC&E operations have become a part of the Company’s Medical Products
segment. The Company paid cash at closing of $2,500,000 and issued 473,933 unregistered shares of its
common stock with a fair value of approximately $479,000, based upon the closing price on the date of
the acquisition. The Company also incurred legal fees and a broker commission totaling approximately
$321,000, resulting in a total purchase price of approximately $3,300,000. The Company may also be
obligated to pay additional cash consideration totaling up to $4,500,000 if revenue associated with
DC&E'’s operations in 2008, 2009 and 2010 exceed certain targets. Additional payments made for the
acquisition of DC&E, if any, will be recorded to goodwill.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price for DC&E (in thousands):

Assets
CUITENT ASSELS ..vveieeccececcere e e sesesaanesenns $ 2,331
Provider contracts and relationships ............... 930
Customer HST ..o..vcreeee e 880
Non-compete agreement ..............ccoovevrervererenne 90
GOOAWILl ...t 1.075
Total assets acquired ......ocvevvvevveecvsecieriennins 5,306
Liabilities
Current liabilities .....ccc.ovovininnciincnrnrnenn, (1,982)
Long-term debt ... (24)
Total liabilities assumed ............oovvvrereneieninns 2,006
Net assets acquired § 3,300

The Company estimated the fair value of DC&E’s identifiable intangible assets based upon a third-
party valuation. The weighted average amortization peried for the acquired intangible assets with finite
lives was approximately 3.5 years.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company recorded approximately $1,075,000, representing the
excess of the purchase price of DC&E over the net amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as goodwill. The goodwill resulting from the DC&E acquisition is allocated to the Comipany’s
Medical Products segment, and no portion of the goodwill is expected to be deductibie for tax purposes.

The results of operations for DC&E are included in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations from the date of acquisition. The following pro forma consolidated results of operations
assume that the acquisition of DC&E was completed as of January 1, 2006:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006
(in thousands)
TOtAl FEVEIUE . ....oooivveveer ittt eemveeraeeras $84,169 $94,849
NEL 10SS 1ovurieiiriirirnieicceceerersrsrs e ssrsstetsssteseeenes {$6,464) {$11,893)

Loss per share, basic and diluted..................... (50.23) ($0.42)
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The pro forma results include certain purchase accounting adjustments such as the estimated changes
in amortization expense on acquired intangible assets as well as interest expense on borrowings used to
finance the acquisition. However, pro forma results do not include any revenue from cross-selling, cost
savings or other effects of the planned integration of DC&E. Accordingly, such amounts are not
necessarily indicative of the results that would have occurred if the acquisition had occurred on the date
indicated or that may result in the future.

6. US BIO JOINT VENTURE

On August 3, 2005, the Company entered into a joint venture to develop and operate a specialty and
oncology pharmacy business with US Bioservices Corporation (“US Bio”), pursuant to the limited
liability company operating agreement (the “Operating Agreement”) of NationsHealth Specialty Rx, LLC
(“Specialty Rx”). In March 2006, CMS approved Specialty Rx’s participation in its Competitive
Acquisition Program (the “CAP Program™). However, the terms of the CAP Program established by
CMS were not economically viable for Specialty Rx and operations did not commence.

On September 27, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement (the “Dissolution Agreement”) with
US Bio to dissolve Specialty Rx. Pursuant to the Dissolution Agreement, the Operating Agreement was
terminated and the capital contributions of $1,530,000 and $1,470,000 were returned to the Company and
US Bio, respectively. As a condition of the Dissolution Agreement, the Company agreed to pay a
termination fee (the “Termination Fee”) to US Bio in the amount of $1,500,000, evidenced by a
promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) to US Bio. The non-interest bearing Promissory Note, which
matured and was paid on February 21, 2008, was recorded net of a discount for imputed interest of
approximately $208,000. The discount on the Promissory Note was amortized to interest expense over its
term, based on the effective interest method. The Company recorded an impairment charge totaling
approximately $1,292,000 during 2006 to write-down the investment in the joint venture to its estimated
net realizable value. The impairment charge recorded represents the net present value of the Promissory
Note issued for the Termination Fee.

7. SALES OF LINES OF BUSINESS

On September 2, 2005, the Company sold its respiratory division (including its respiratory-related
inventory) to Lincare Inc. and Med 4 Home Inc. for $16,000,000, of which $14,400,000 was received at
closing and $800,000 was received on each of March 2, 2006 and September 2, 2006. Pursuant to the
transaction, the Company recorded a gain of $15,508,000 in 2003.

On September 5, 2006, the Company sold its Discount Prescription Drug Card Business to HealthTran
LLC (“HealthTran™) for $6,000,000 in cash (the “Purchase Price”). The Purchase Price was subject to a
potential downward adjustment, of up to $1,000,000, based on the volume of claims processed by
HealthTran related to the Discount Prescription Drug Card Business through September 5, 2007. Pursuant
to the transaction, the Company recorded a gain of $5,000,000 in 2006. Based upon the actual claims
volume through September 5, 2007, the final purchase price adjustment amounted to approximately
$662,000. Pursuant to the final purchase price adjustment, the Company recorded a gain of approximately
$338,000 in 2007.

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation on property and equipment is calculated on the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the respective lease term or the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment amounted to $2,326,000, $1,858,000 and
£1,063,000 for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Property and equipment consists of the following:

Estimated Useful December 31,
Life (Years) 2007 2006

(in thousands}
Office and computer equipment 3-5 $3,533 $2,138
Furniture and fixtures 5 922 806
Leasehold improvements Upto5 917 705
Software 3 _4.987 _3.329
10,359 6,978
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 5,693 3421
$4666 33,557

The Company capitalizes certain internatly developed software costs, which are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the software, generally three years. The amount of
capitalized software development costs included in property and equipment in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets totaled $706,000, net of accumulated amortization of $2,144,000 as of
December 31, 2007, and $1,280,000, net of accumulated amortization of $1,472,000 as of December 31,
2006. Amortization of software development costs amounted to $590,000, $686,000 and $486,000 for
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Capital leases of equipment and software are included in property and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets in the amount of approximately $1,948,000, net of
accumulated amortization of approximatety $633,000, as of December 31, 2007, and approximately
$96,000, net of accumulated amortization of approximatety $166,000, as of December 31, 2006.
Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In conjunction with the Company’s agreement with CIGNA (see Note 4), on November 4, 2005,
CIGNA purchased from the Company 303,030 shares of its common stock for $6.60 per share, which was
below the $7.88 per share market price of the stock on such date, and the Company issued to CIGNA
warrants to purchase 2,936,450 shares of its common stock at $6.60 per share. The fair value of the
warrants and the discount from the fair value of the common stock on the date of purchase, totaling
approximately $16,156,000, was recorded as an intangible asset specifically identifiable to the CIGNA
contract. The original agreement with CIGNA established the Company as the exclusive provider of
certain services with respect to CIGNA’s Part D plans and conveyed to the Company a contractual legal
right to provide such services for a specified period of time. The CIGNA contract embodied probable
future economic benefit to the Company, and thus the costs of acquiring the contract, represented by the
equity consideration granted to CIGNA, met the criteria for recognition of an asset. The Company is
amortizing the CIGNA contract intangible over approximately 50 months on a straight-line basis from the
date of issuance through the remaining term of the agreement.

In addition to the intangible assets recorded in connection with the acquisition of DC&E (see Note 5),
during the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded intangible assets, totaling
- approximately $2,775,000 related to the acquisition of certain assets of diabetes supply companies. The
purchase price for each acquisition is allocated to all the assets acquired, including customer lists,
inventory and other assets, if any, based on their relative fair values.
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The costs of acquired customer lists are amortized over their expected lives of four years, with 35%
amortized in the first year and the remaining 65% amortized on a straight-line basis over the succeeding
three years. The costs of the non-compete agreement and provider contracts and relationships are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected lives of three years.

Amounts recorded for the Company's intangible assets with finite lives, all of which pertain to the
Company's Medical Products segment, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006

Gross Gross

Carrying  Accumulated Carrying  Accumulated

Amount  Amortization Net Amount  Amortization Net

. (in thousands)

Customer contract $ 16,156 $ (8,401) § 7,755 $ 16,156 $(4,524) $11,632
Provider contracts and
relationships 930 (103) 827 - -- -
Acquired customer lists 3,935 {845) 3,090 374 (1D 363
Non-compete
agreement 90 (10) 80 - - -

$2L111 $.(9.359) $11.752 $16,530 $(4,535) $11.995

Amortization of intangible assets amounted to $4,825,000, $3,889,000 and $646,000 for 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively. Estimated future annual amortization expense is as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2008 ... $5,253
2009 ... e s 5,064
2010 i 1,012
2011 o 423

10. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

Accrued compensation

Accrued refunds

Accrued fulfillment costs

Accrued purchase price adjustment
Other

11. CREDIT FACILITY

2007 2006
$ 1425 § 2310
1,216 1,583
- 1,356
- 1,000
1912 2,820
$ 455 59069

The Company entered into a revolving credit agreement in April 2004, which was subsequently
amended and restated from time to time through November 2005 to add additional over-advance
borrowing capability and adjust the financial covenants to account for the Company’s actual and

projected financial results.
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On March 21, 2006, the revolving credit agreement was amended and restated to, among other things,
eliminate the over-advance borrowing capability, adjust the financial covenants to reflect the Company’s
actual and projected financial results, provide the Company with the ability to prepay and terminate the
credit facility at any time upon sixty days notice with the payment of certain early termination fees, and
extend the maturity date to April 30, 2010. On August 11, 2006, the revolving credit agreement was
amended again to adjust the financial covenants to account for the Company’s actual and projected
financial results.

Under the agreement, as amended and restated, the available funding was limited by a borrowing base,
which is comprised of a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, as defined, up to a
maximum of $10,000,000. The credit agreement requires the Company to maintain a lock-box
arrangement, whereby amounts received into the lock-box are applied to reduce the revolving credit
facility outstanding, and contains certain subjective acceleration clauses in the event of a material adverse
event, as defined. Borrowings under the credit agreement are classified as current liabilities in the
Company’s balance sheet in accordance with the provisions set forth in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue
No. 95-22, “Balance Sheet Classification of Borrowings Ouistanding under Revolving Credif Agreements
That Include both a Subjective Acceleration Clause and a Lock-Box Arrangement.”

The revolving line bears interest monthly at the higher of prime plus 2.5% or 6.5%, plus certain
additional fees and charges. As of December 31, 2007, the rate under the facility was 9.75% per annum.
The line is secured by substantially all assets of the Company and requires the maintenance of minimum
EBITDA, as defined in the credit agreement, and fixed charge coverage ratios, as well as minimum
monthly cash collections of accounts receivable and minimum liquidity, each as defined in the credit
agreement. Under the terms of the credit agreement, the Company is not permitted to pay dividends to its
stockholders. As of December 31, 2007, the outstanding balance under the line of credit was $2,500,000,
and the unused portion available thereunder was approximately $4,329,000, of which $1,500,000 was
reserved for the repayment of the Promissory Note (Note 6).

On April 11, 2007, the Company entered into a Third Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term
Loan and Security Agreement with the lender (the “Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement™).
The Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement retained the existing $10,000,000 revolving credit
facility, the subjective acceleration clauses in the event of a material adverse event, as definzd, and
existing maturity date of the overall credit facility of April 30, 2010, and added a $7,000,000 multi-draw
term loan (the “Term Loan™) to the credit facility. On April 11, 2007, $1,500,000 of proceeds from the
Term Loan were funded into a restricted deposit account to serve as collateral for the facility as required
under the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. The remainder of the Term Loan is restricted
in use to finance the acquisition of certain assets of diabetic supply companies, including customer lists,
inventory and other assets. Through December 31, 2007, an additional $5,289,000 was drawn on the
Term Loan for such purposes, and as of December 31, 2007, the total balance outstanding under the Term
Loan was approximately $6,789,000. Interest on the outstanding principal balance of the Term Loan is
payable monthly at the higher of prime plus 1.0% or 5%. Payment of the principal balance outstanding
under the Term Loan is to be made on a straight-line basis, according to an amortization schedule, in 29
consecutive monthly installments, commencing on January 1, 2008. The Third Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement also adjusted the financial covenants of the credit facility and added a covenant related
to the Company’s diabetic patient count. On November 13, 2007, the Third Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement was amended to adjust the financial covenants to account for the Company’s actual and
projected financial results. As of December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all
applicable financial covenants under the agreement.
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On February 1, 2008, the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was amended to, among
other things, temporarily increase the percentage of eligible accounts receivable available under the
borrowing base through the end of 2008 and defer the due dates of the installment payments under the
Term Loan through June 30, 2008.

On March 27, 2008, the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was further amended to
adjust the financial covenants to account for the Company’s actual and projected financial results. In
connection with the amendment, the annual interest rate on the revolving line of credit was increased to
the higher of prime plus 3% or 8.25%, and the annual interest rate on the Term Loan was increased to the
higher of prime plus 4.5% or 9.75%, effective as of the amendment date.

In connection with the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, on April 11, 2007, the
Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Equity Participation Fee Agreement with the
lender. Pursuant to this agreement, the Company agreed to pay a fixed equity participation fee of
$1,375,000 at the maturity date or on earlier termination of the credit facility. As of December 31, 2007,
the Company had accrued approximately $712,000 related to the equity participation fee as additional
interest expense. In connection with the amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, on February 1, 2008, the amount of the equity participation fee was revised to $1,575,000.

12. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On February 28, 2005, the Company closed a private placement transaction with MHR Capital
Partners LP and two of its affiliates (collectively, the “Holders”). For an aggregate purchase price of
$15,000,000, the Holders received $15,000,000 principal value in secured convertible notes (the “Notes™)
and 1,785,714 shares of the Company’s common stock, which were transferred to the Holders by certain
principal stockholders of the Company. In combination with their prior holdings, this transaction resulted
in the Holders owning more than 10% of the Company’s common stock. Furthermore, pursuant to a
stockholders agreement between the Holders and stockholders of the Company holding a majority of the
outstanding voting interest, Dr. Mark H. Rachesky was elected to the Company’s Board of Directors on
October 20, 2005. As a result, the Notes and related activity and amounts have been presented as related
party transactions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Notes, which mature on February 28, 2012, have a stated fixed interest rate of 7.75%, payable
monthly. The Notes are secured by substantially all the Company’s assets, but are subordinated to the
credit facility (see Note 11). The Notes may be subordinated to future indebtedness not to exceed
$20,000,000 in the aggregate, or, if the Company achieves certain performance criteria, $25,000,000. The
Holders may convert the Notes into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price of
$6.56 per share, subject to certain anti-dilution provisions. In addition, the Notes will accelerate to
maturity upon the occurrence of a default on the Notes by the Company. Through December 31, 2007, no
events have occurred that would trigger adjustments for anti-dilution.

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Company under certain circumstances, and upon a
change of control transaction. If Notes are redeemed at the option of the Company, other than upon a
change of control transaction, the Holders may elect to receive either (i) the principal and unpaid interest
(the “Par Redemption Price”) plus warrants with the exercise price and for the number of shares for which
the Notes would have been convertible into immediately prior to such redemption, or (i) 110% of the
principal amount of the Notes plus any accrued and unpaid interest thereon (the “Premium Redemption
Price”). If a Note is redeemed pursuant to a change of control transaction, the Company may redeem the
Notes at the Premium Redemption Price. Through December 31, 2007, no events have occurred that
would trigger any of these rights.

Beginning on February 28, 2010, the Company may be required by the Holders to redeem a portion

of the Notes at the Par Redemption Price and the Holders shall have a right (the “Tax Put Right”) to
require the Company to purchase from the Holders, at market price, up to $5,000,000 of the Company’s
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common stock to satisfy the Holders income tax liability resulting from the redemption. Furthermore, if
the amount received by the Holders is still insufficient to pay the income taxes relating to the rederaption,
the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to file a registration statement for the Holders of
the Notes, failing which the holders of the Notes shall have an additional Tax Put Right in the amount of
up to $2,500,000 in the aggregate for all such redemptions. The Company expects that in Februarv 2010,
approximately $4,700,000 of the principal amount of the Notes will be redeemed,

The Company allocated the $15,000,000 in proceeds from issuance of the Notes based upon the
relative fair values attributed to the Notes and the 1,785,714 shares of common stock. The amount
allocated to the shares of common stock was recorded as a discount on the Notes. An additional discount
was calculated for the beneficial conversion feature of the Notes represented by the difference between
the fair value per share at the date of the transaction and the effective conversion rate. The discount on the
Notes is being amortized to interest expense over the life of the Notes based on the effective interest
method.

13. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per
share, with such designations, voting and other rights and preferences as may be determined from time to
time by the Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2007, no shares of preferred stock have been 1ssued.

Warrants

Pursuant to its initial public offering (the "Offering") on August 28, 2003, the Company sold
4,025,000 units (“Units”), including 525,000 Units that were issued upon exercise of the underwriters’
over-allotment option. Each Unit consisted of one share of the Company’s common stock, $0.0001 par
value, and two Redeemable Common Stock Purchase Warrants (the “Warrants™). Separate trading of the
Company’s common stock and the Warrants underlying the Units commenced on September 9, 2003.
Each warrant entitled the holder to purchase from the Company one share of common stock at an exercise
price of §5.00. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, 399,920 and 737,205 Warrants
were exercised resulting in proceeds of approximately $2,000,000 and $3,686,000, respectively. Through
August 24, 2007, 1,161,925 of the Warrants had been exercised and the remaining 6,888,075 Warrants
expired on that date. In connection with the Offering, the Company also issued an option (the
“Underwriters’ Option™)} for $100 to the representative of the underwriters to purchase 350,000 Units at
an exercise price of $9.90 per Unit, which expires on August 24, 2008, The warrants underlying such
Units are exercisable at $6.00 per share, but otherwise have the same terms and conditions as the
Warrants.

On March 9, 2004, the Company granted warrants, which expire on August 31, 2011, to purchase an
aggregate of 45,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $8.50 per share to three consultants.
Through December 31, 2007, none of the warrants had been exercised.

As discussed in Note 9, the Company issued to CIGNA warrants to purchase 2,936,450 shares of its
common stock at $6.60 per share. The warrants were fully vested and non-forfeitable on the date of grant
and have an initial term of 7 years, which will be extended to 10 years if the Company’s stock price does
not equal or exceed $10.00 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period at any time
prior to the initial expiration date. In the event of termination of the agreement due to a CIGNA. breach,
the warrants will expire one year afier the effective date of the termination. In addition, the warrants will
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expire immediately prior to an acquisition, merger or consolidation of the Company with any unrelated
third party in which the Company is not the surviving entity. The warrants allow for net-share settlement
at the option of CIGNA. Through December 31, 2007, none of the warrants issued to CIGNA had been
exercised.

Common Stock Reserved

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had 8,532,092 shares of common stock reserved for issuance
for warrants, the Company’s equity compensation plans, the MHR Notes and the Underwriters’ Option,
which totaled 2,981,450, 2,914,057, 2,286,585 and 350,000, respectively.

14. EMPLOYEE STOCK COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT PLANS

On August 30, 2004, the shareholders of the Company voted to adopt the NationsHealth, Inc. 2004
Incentive Stock Plan (the “2004 Plan™) to enable the Company to offer directors, officers and other key
employees stock options in the Company. A total of 1,900,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
was authorized for issuance under the 2004 Plan.

On June 17, 2005, the Company’s stockholders approved the NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan™). A total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock was
authorized for issuance under the 2005 Plan. Under the 2005 Plan, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock (non-vested stock), restricted stock units and other equity-based awards may be
granted to eligible employees, consultants and directors.

Awards of options to employees under the 2004 Plan and 2005 Plan generally vest over a four-year
period, with pro rata vesting upon the first anniversary of the grant and each six months thereafier.
Awards of options have a maximum term of six years and the Company generally issues new shares upon
exercise. The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $0.71, $1.58 and $3.24, respectively.

Through December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for employee stock-based compensation using
the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations. Under this method,
compensation costs for employee stock options were measured as the excess, if any, of the market price
of the common stock at the date of the grant over the exercise price. Effective January 1, 2006, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” using the “modified prospective” method.
Under the modified prospective method, compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective
date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the
effective date and (b) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for ali awards granted to employees
prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date. The effect of
the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) resulted in an increase to the Company’s loss from operations and net
loss of approximately $673,000, or $0.02 per basic and diluted share for the year ended December 31,
2007 and of approximately $963,000, or $0.03 per basic and diluted share for the year ended December
31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) had no impact on net cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2007 or 2006.
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Had compensation costs for the Company’s employee stock option grants been determined based on
the fair value at the grant date for awards, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
Jor Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” the Company’s net loss and loss per share for the year
ended December 31, 2005 would have been equal to the pro forma amounts indicated below (in
thousands, except per share data):

Net loss, as reported $(19,819)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

included in net loss 78
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards {1,132)
Pro forma net loss $(20,873)
Loss per share — basic and diluted

As reported 3 (075

Pro forma 3 (0.79)

The Company recognizes compensation cost related to stock options and other share-based awards on
a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. The total compensation cost recognized during the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 related to grants under the 2004 Plan and 2005 Plan was
approximately $2,959,000 and $2,291,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was
approximately $1,095,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock options, which
is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-average period of 2.7 years. The intrinsic value
of all options granted during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $0 and as of
December 31, 2007 the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding, including exercisable options,
was $0.

The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model based on the following assumptions:

2007 Grants 2006 Grants 2005 Grants
Weighted average expected volatility......... 76% 58% 49%
Range of expected volatility .......c.ccoveneneen 70% - 80% 50% - 70% 45% - 50%
Range of risk free interest rate................... 371%-491%  435%-5.13%  3.88%-4.44%
Expected term ..........cccooooineeeiererene 5.0 years 5.0 years 5.0 years
Expected annual forfeiture rate.................. 20% 20% 0%
Expected dividend rate..........c..ccccooeeeeeeee. 0% 0% %

Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock since the date
of the Offering and the volatility of the common stock of other companies in the same industry. Due to
the Company's lack of historical exercise activity, the expected term for options granted was derived
using the midpoint of the vesting period and the contractual term.
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A summary of the activity and status of the Company’s stock options is as follows for the year ended
December 31, 200?:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual
Shares Price Term (years)
Qutstanding at beginning of year.......................... 1,370,507 $ 567
Granted......coooic e 310,500 1.12
EXErcised. ..ot s -- --
FOrfeited......coviciniiinieciecei e vr e e eeser e saneran (165,002) 3.61
EXPIred oo e e e (75.386) 6.94
Outstanding at end of year ... 1,440619 $ 486 3.86
Vested and exercisable at end of year.......................... 766,263 § 645 345
Vested and expected to vest at end of year.................... 1,229,082 §_528 3.67

The fair value of the restricted stock as of the date of grant is recorded to compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the vesting periods of the awards, which range from one to five years. The total
grant date fair value of restricted stock vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
was approximately $2,268,000, $1,328,000, and $0, respectively. Approximately $2,286,000 and
$1,328,000 of compensation expense was recognized during the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively, related 1o restricted stock awards. Compensation expense for 2007 included
approximately $1,566,000 of expense associated with the acceleration of vesting of certain restricted
stock awards. Stock repurchases for withholding taxes on restricted stock vesting during the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 resulted in decreased cash flows from financing activities of approximately
$14,000 and $52,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $1,022,000 of
total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock, which is expected to be
recognized over a remaining weighted average period of 1.6 years. Based upon the Company’s history of
forfeitures of restricted stock awards, forfeitures were estimated at 15% for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006.

A summary of the activity and status of the Company’s restricted stock grants is as follows for the
year ended December 31, 2007:

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested restricted stock grants at beginning of year ............ 794,362 $ 3.86
GRANLEA.... ... e eres e s s ranar e e s e v anarasesesanereeransanans 90,000 1.52
VEBLED ot e se e e e anas (521,454) 435
FOrfEited et (45.000) 2.15
Nonvested restricted stock grants at end of year...................... 317,908 2.65

An additional award of 200,000 shares of restricted stock with a grant date fair value of $594,000, or
$2.97 per share, was granted to a key employee in June 2006 by certain principal stockholders of the
Company. Including the 200,000 shares granted by stockholders of the Company, as of December 31,
2007, there were 517,908 shares of non-vested restricted stock outstanding, with a weighted average grant
date fair value of $2.77 per share.
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As of December 31, 2005, the Company had a balance of approximately $2,761,000 in unearned
compensation related to awards of nonvested restricted stock. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the
balance in unearned compensation was reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

Employee Savings Plan

During 2004, NationsHealth established a savings plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code (the “Code™), whereby employees may contribute a percentage of their compensation, not
to exceed the maximum amount allowable under the Code. At the discretion of the Board of Directors, the
Company may elect to make contributions into the savings plan. Through December 31, 2007, the Board
has not authorized any contributions to the plan. .

15. INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying
the enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and tax bases of the existing assets and liabilities. The effect on deferred taxes of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income for the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is provided to the extent it is more likely than not that any deferred tax asset may not be
realized.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the net deferred tax
asset at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are presented below (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carry forwards $ 14,170 $ 10910

Stock-based compensation 2,464 3,597

Allowances for doubtfitl accounts, claims denials and returns 3,074 5,098

Accrued payroll 374 539

Other 1,125 __ 1,337
Total deferred tax assets 21,207 21,481

Less valuation allowance (20,218) (20,875)

989 606

Deferred tax liabilities:

Finite-lived intangible assets (634) --

Software development costs (285) (501)

Other (70} (105
Total deferred tax liabilities {989) 606
Net deferred taxes . g - $=

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management considers the
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning sirategies
in making this assessment. Because of the Company’s lack of earnings history, the net deferred tax assets
have been offset by a full valuation allowance. The decrease in the valuation allowance for the year ended
December 31, 2007 was $657,000,
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At December 31, 2007, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards available of approximately
$37,657,000. These carryforwards expire through 2027,

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. Federal statutory rate to income tax expense
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Tax at U.S. statutory rate........coooevririiinneiiiinnnnnn. 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit...........ooovivnieienanen. 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Non-deductible items. ..., {4.2%) (1.2%) (0.9%)
Write-off of deferred tax asset to non-deductible items... (31.3%) (13.3%) -%
Change in valuation allowance....................ooeoenin. (2.0%) (23.0%) (36.6%)
Income tax expense -% =% --%

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As of January 1, 2007 and
December 31, 2007, the Company had no material unrecognized tax benefits and no adjustments to its
financial position, results of operations or cash flows were required. The Company does not expect that
unrecognized tax benefits will increase within the next 12 months. In the event the Company was to
recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions, it would be recognized in the financial
statements as income tax expense. Tax years 2004 through 2006 are subject to examination by the federal
and state taxing authorities. There are no income tax examinations currently in process.

16, COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Leases and Debt Maturities

The Company leases certain office space, warehouse and distribution space, and equipment under
noncancelable operating and capital leases. Significant operating leases include the Company’s corporate
offices in Sunrise, Florida, which is scheduled to expire in August 2010 and contains renewal options for
two three-year terms, and the iease for the Company’s distribution center in Weston, Florida, which is
scheduled to expire in August 2011. Certain of these leases contain rent concessions and payment
escalations, in which case rent expense, including the impact of the concessions and/or escalations, is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The Company’s corporate office lease also
included approximately $380,000 of leasehold improvement incentives, which have been capitalized and
are being amortized as an adjustment to rent expense on a straight-line basis over the initial term of the
lease.

Rent expense under all operating leases was approximately $1,707,000, $1,750,000 and $1,798,000
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

On February 5, 2007, as amended on June 29, 2007 and August 24, 2007, the Company entered into a
lease agreement for certain telecommunications equipment and computer software. The lease, which
provides for monthly payments of approximately $75,000 through July 31, 2010, is being accounted for
as a capital lease. As of December 31, 2007, the related capital lease obligation totaled approximately
$1,977,000.
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As described in Note 12, the Company has MHR Notes outstanding in the principal amount of
$15,000,000 that bear interest at 7.75% and mature on February 28, 2012. The MHR Noles are
convertible by MHR and redeemable by the Company at any time; therefore, future payments for interest
are subject to the MHR Notes remaining outstanding. Pursuant to the terms of the MHR Notes, the
Company expects that it will be required to repay (redeem) approximately $4,700,000 of the principal
amount of the MHR Notes in February 2010 and $10,300,000 in 2012. At December 31, 2007, the
Company also has outstanding a non-interest bearing promissory note, with a principal amount of
$1,500,000, which matured in February 2008 (see Note 6), and an outstanding balance totaling
approximately $6,789,000 under the Term Loan, which matures in 29 monthly installments commencing
January 1, 2008 (see Note 11}.

The approximate future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases and maturities of
long-term debt at December 31, 2007 are as follows (in thousands):

Capital Operating Debt

Year Ending December 31, Leases Leases Maturities
2008 $ 962 $ 1,722 $ 4309
2009 958 1,753 2,809
2010 580 1,273 5,871
2011 54 471 --
2012 45 231 10,300
Thereafter I 250 -

2,599  § 5700 £23.289
Less: amounts representing interest 524

Net present value of capital lease obligations 32,075

Letter of Credit

As of December 31, 2007, the Company is contingently liable under an open standby letter of credit
for approximately $300,000 in favor of the landlord of the Company’s leased corporate headquarters.

Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with its Chief Executive Officer, Glenn M. Parker, M.D,,
President and Chief Information Officer, Lewis P. Stone, and, prior to December 16, 2005, with Robert
Gregg, who served as Chief Operating Officer until October 5, 2005. In addition to salary, bonuses and
benefits, these agreements also provide for termination benefits if the agreement is terminated by the
Company for reasons other than cause or by the executive for good reason or disability, each as defined in
the agreement. In these cases, the executive is entitled to:

e An amount equal to the then current annual base salary for twenty-four months;

e In the event of the executive’s disability, medical insurance during the period the executive’s
spouse or the executive is eligible to receive benefits under COBRA;

» Immediate vesting of all stock options or restricted stock previously granted to the executive;

s Require the Company to purchase from the executive up to $3,000,000 worth of shares of the
Company’s common stock. In lieu of a cash payment, the Company may arrange for the sale of
the shares to a third party or register the resale of the shares, in which case the executive shall
receive at least $3,000,000. If the Company decides to purchase the shares from the executive and
one or both of the other executives exercises their rights to sell at the same time, then the
Company may pay the funds to the executives over two or three years, as appropriate, in equal
amounts pro-rata among the executives.
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On December 16, 2005 (the “Separation Date™), Robert Gregg and the Company entered into a
Separation Agreement and General Release (the “Separation Agreement”). Under the terms of the
Separation Agreement, Mr. Gregg resigned from all employment roles that he held at the Company
effective as of the Separation Date. The Separation Agreement affirmed Mr. Gregg’s ability to exercise
his right under his employment agreement to request that the Company arrange for the purchase of up to
$3,000,000 worth of the Company’s common stock from Mr. Gregg (the “Put Right™). Mr. Gregg has the
right to require the Company to purchase up to $3,000,000 worth of the Company’s common stock, held
by RGGPLS, LLC (“RGGPLS™), the controlling stockholder of the Company, on Mr. Gregg’s behalf,
provided that the Company is not required to purchase more than $1,500,000 worth of such common
stock in any calendar year. Under certain circumstances, the Company may pay such amounts over a
period of up to three years. In licu of a cash payment, the Company has the option to register such shares
of the Company’s common stock for sale pursuant to a registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the *“Act”) or to arrange for the sale of such shares of the Company’s common stock
pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the Act.

On April 4, 2007, Mr. Gregg partialty exercised his Put Right to require the Company to purchase
$750,000 of the Company’s common stock beneficially owned by Mr. Gregg, representing 500,000
shares based on the closing price of $1.50 per share on the trading day prior to the put notice. The
Company notified Mr. Gregg of its intention to cause such shares to be sold, as promptly as is reasonably
practicable, pursuant to a registration statement under the Act, or pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements of the Act. To the extent that these put shares are sold at a price less than the
price on the date of the put, the Company will be required to make a cash payment to Mr. Gregg for such
shortfall amount. On July 16, 2007, in connection with RGGPLS’s transfer to Mr. Gregg of 288,000
shares of the Company’s common stock, Mr. Gregg executed an acknowledgement that the proceeds from
any sale by him of the 288,000 shares in the open market (based on a 20-day average price) or to any third
party shall satisfy a portion of the Company’s obligation pursuant to the Put Right. Based upon shares
sold by Mr. Gregg to date and the remaining shares under the April 4, 2007 put, the Company has accrued
approximately $398,000 at December 31, 2007 related to the estimated shortfall from the price on the date
of the put.

Medicare Audit

In January 2007, the Company was notified by a third party Medicare contractor that, based solely on
its review of 100 Medicare beneficiaries representing 265 services billed between November 2003 and
April 2004, it was estimated that the Company had received an extrapolated overpayment of
approximately $1,374,000. The Company objected to this assertion and responded by providing
additional documentation and explanation of the questioned billings. Thereafter, the third-party
contractor reduced the extrapolated overpayment estimate to approximately $500,000, and on May 1,
2007, the Company received a demand letter for repayment of this amount. The Company appealed the
repayment demand and submitted additional supporting documentation to the third-party contractor. Asa
result of this appeal, the Company has received notice that all but an immaterial amount of the total
overpayment was reversed in the Company’s favor.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in two reportable segments: Medical Products and Insurance Services. The
Medical Products segment markets and sells diabetes, ostomy and other medical supplies, as well as
physician prescribed medications, primartly to Medicare and managed care beneficiaries. Through March
2007, the Medical Products segment consisted of two operating divisions: (1) Direct-to-Consumer, which
markets and sells to patients primarily through mail-order channels and, through September 30, 2005,
offered discount prescription drug cards, and (2) Retail, which marketed and sold to patients through the
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Company’s retail initiative with Kmart Corporation (“Kmart”). The Kmart contract, which expired by its
terms on January 1, 2007, was not renewed, and the Company ceased servicing customers through Kmart
locations in March 2007. In addition, commencing September 4, 2007, the Medical Products segment
also includes the operations of DC&E. Through its Insurance Services segment, the Company provides
services to CIGNA and other Medicare insurance providers in connection with their providing of
coverage to Medicare beneficiaries.

The Company’s management evaluates performance and allocates resources based primarily on
segment revenues and profit or loss from operations. Segment profit or loss from operations for the
reportable segments includes certain sales, marketing, fulfillment, and general and administrative
expenses directly atiributable to the segment and excludes certain corporate amounts that are managed
outside of and not allocated to the reportable segments. The accounting policies of the Company’s
reportable segments arc the same as for the Company on a consolidated basis. For purposes of the
Company’s segment reporting, the direct-to-consumer and retail operating divisions have been aggregated
in the Medical Products segment.

Revenues and segment profit (loss) for the Company’s reportable segments for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Revenue:
Medical Products (1).......coovviiniiiiniinnnnnns. § 46,070 $ 48,771 $ 77,307
Insurance Services ... ...ooviriiiiii i 31,450 38,445 10,249
Consolidated revenue...........ccccoovvnnennn.. $ 77,520 § 87216 $ 87,556
Segment profit (loss):
Medical Products (2) .......cocovviiieiii e, § 3,290 § 9,520 § 5,066
Insurance Services ..........oooiiiiiieiniiiieennns 11,871 (1,304) {14,086)
Unallocated amounts:
Gain on sales of business lines ...........cccn.. 338 5,000 15,503
Impairment of investment in joint venture ....... -- (1,292) --
Other corporate eXpenses .......o.vvveeceeeeensns (17,166) (20,225) _(23.360)
Consolidated loss from operations $(1,667) S (8301) $(16,872)

(1) Revenue for the Medical Products segment includes net revenue from the Prescription Drug Card
Business, which was sold on September 5, 2006 (see Note 7).

(2) Segment profit for Medical Products for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes a gain of
approximately $977,000 related to the settlement of a vendor obligation.

Effective beginning July 1, 2006, the Company changed certain of its expense allocations arnong its
reportable segments. The effect of these changes was to decrease segment profit by approximately
$1,164,000 and $1,149,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, for the
Medical Products segment and by approximately $2,369,000 and $1,019,000 the years ended December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, for the Insurance Services segment. Conversely, unallocated other
corporate expenses were decreased by approximately $3,533,000 and $2,168,000 the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was

approximately $1,587,000, $803,000 and $750,000, respectively, for the Medical Products segment and
$4,621,000, $4,474,000 and $729,000, respectively, for the Insurance Services segment.
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Identifiable assets for the Company’s reportable segments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as
follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Medical Products ........cvvvvniiieninnnnn. $ 17,892 $ 7,790
Insurance Services ........cccceeeviiivienninnnss. 12,531 15,074
Unallocated............ooovieviiiiiniiiienen 1.057 7,524
Consolidated assets $37,480 $ 30,388

18. MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The Company purchases medical supplies from certain suppliers that constitute a significant portion
of the Company’s purchases for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. The major suppliers
were as follows (§ in thousands):

Percentage Amount
of of
Purchases Purchases

Year Ended December 31, 2007
Supplier C 24% 5,420
Supplier B 22% 4,996
Supplier G 12% 2,798
Supplier H 11% 2,452
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Supplier A 25% § 3,964
Supplier B 24% 3,931
Supplier D 20% 3,137
Supplier E 12% 2,000
Supplier F 10% 1.679

2% 314,711
Year Ended December 31, 2005 -
Supplier A 32% § 8815
Supplier B 21% 5,646
Supplier C 10% 2.830

03% $17.291
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19. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(in thousands, except per share data)

2007
Revenue $ 18,752 $ 17,025 $ 18,175 $ 23,568
Gross profit 10,619 10,640 10,470 12,704
Net loss (1,188) (524) (3,771) () (443)
Loss per share

— basic and ‘

diluted * $ (0.04) $ (0.02) $ (0.13) £ (0.02)
2006
Revenue $ 25,015 $ 19,616 $ 19,796 $ 22,789
Gross profit 649 10,536 13,133 12,137
Net (loss) income {13,530) (4,997) (2) 6,020 (3) 1,229 (4)

{Loss) earnings per
share — basic and
diluted * § (0.49) $ (0.18) § o022 $ 0.04

* For 2006, the sum of the quarterly earnings (loss) per share amounts differs from the amounts reflected
in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations due to rounding.

(1) Results for the quarter ended September 30, 2007 reflect approximately $1,566,000 of stock-based
compensation expense associated with the acceleration of vesting of certain restricted stock awards
and a gain of approximately $338,000 related to the finalization of the purchase price related to the
sale of the Company’s Discount Prescription Drug Card Business (see Note 7).

(2) Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 reflect an impairment charge of approximately $733,000
to write down the investment in the Company’s joint venture to its estimated net realizable value as of
June 30, 2006 (see Note 6) and a gain of approximately $1,688,000 from a vendor settlement related
to amounts that had been accrued in a prior quarter.

(3) Results for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 reflect a gain of approximately $5,000,000 related
to the sale of the Company’s Discount Prescription Drug Card Business (see Note 7), a gain of
approximately $977,000 from the termination of a distribution agreement with a vendor, and an
additional impairment charge of approximately $559,000 to write down the investrment in the
Company’s joint venture to its estimated net realizable value as of September 30, 2006 (see Note 6).

{4) Results for the quarter ended December 31, 2006 reflect approximately $475,000 of expense related to
executive severance and the reversal of approximately $800,000 related to year-end bonus amounts
that had been accrued in prior quarters,
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 9A(T). Controls and Precedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
as of December 31, 2007. Based on this evaluation, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures {as defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(¢)) are effective.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)). The Company’s internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of
Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007. In performing this evaluation, the Company’s management used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on this evaluation, the Company’s management
concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is
effective based on those criteria.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controt over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For purposes of management’s evaluation of the Company's internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, management has elected to exclude Diabetes Care & Education, Inc. (DC&E)
from the scope of its assessment as permitted by guidance provided by the SEC. DC&E, which was
acquired on September 4, 2007, represented approximately 17% of the Company's consolidated assets at
December 31, 2007 and contributed approximately 5% of total revenues in 2007. The DC&E business
will be included in management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial
reporting in fiscal year 2008.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting pursuant
to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only
the Company’s management’s report in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,.
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Item 9B. Other Information.

On March 27, 2008, the Company and CapitalSource Finance, LLC entered into the Fifth
Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Fifth Amendment”). The Fifth
Amendment adjusted the financial covenants of the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement to
account for the Company’s actual and projected financial results. In connection with the Fifth
Amendment, the annual interest rate on the revolving line of credit was increased to the higher of prime
plus 3% or 8.25%, and the annual interest rate on the term loan was increased to the higher of prime plus
4.5% or 9.75%, effective as of the amendment date.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Except for the information set forth below in this item, the information required under this item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation
14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than
120 days afier the close of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

Code of Ethics
Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which covers all employees, including our Principal

Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer, is available on our
website at www.nationshealth.com in the Investor Relations section, under Corporate Governance.

Item 11, Executive Compensation.

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.

Except for the information set forth below in this item, the information required under this item is
incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation
14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not iater than
120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information about the common stock that may be issued under our
existing equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2007.

Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
Number of securities to exercise price of available for future issuance under
be issued upon exercise outstanding equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, options, warrants (excluding securities reflected in
warrants and rights and rights column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) {c)
Equily compensation 1,440,619 $4.86 1,473,438
plans approved by
security holders
Equity compensation -- -- --
plans not approved by
security holders
Total ' 1,440,619 $4.86 1,473,438
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits.

(a)

1. Consolidated Financial Statements.

For a list of the consolidated financial information included herein, see Index at Item 8.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either not required or
not applicable, or because the required information has been included in the consolidated
financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits on the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed as part of, or furnished with, or
incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, this 28th day of March, 2008.

NATIONSHEALTH, INC.
By:/s/ Glenn M. Parker

Glenn M., Parker, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 28, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Company in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ Glenn M, Parker Chief Executive Officer and Director March 28, 2008
(Glenn M. Parker (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Timothy Fairbanks Chief Financial Officer and Director ' March 28, 2008
Timothy Fairbanks (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Bryan Happ Chief Accounting Officer (Principal March 28, 2008
Bryan Happ Accounting Officer)
/s/ Arthur R. Spector Chairman of the Board of Directors March 28, 2008
Arthur R. Spector
/s/ Lewis P. Stone Director, President and Chief Information March 28, 2008
Lewis P. Stone Officer
/s/ Elliot F. Hahn Director March 28, 2008
Elliot F. Hahn, Ph.D.
/s/Gary D. Small Director March 28, 2008
Gary D. Small :
/s/ Raymond N. Steinman Director March 28, 2008
Raymond N. Steinman
/s/ Michael D. Tabris Director March 28, 2008
Michael D. Tabris .
/s/ Mark H. Rachesky Director March 28, 2008
Mark H. Rachesky, M.D.
/s/ Don K. Rice Director March 28, 2008
Don K. Rice
{s/ Richard R. Howard Director March 28, 2008
Richard R. Howard
/s/ George F. Raymond Director March 28, 2008

George F. Raymond
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Exhibit No.
2.1

22

23

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

NATIONSHEALTH, INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX

) Description
Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 10, 2004 among

Millstream Acquisition Corporation, N Merger L.L.C. and NationsHealth Holdings, L.L.C.
Filed as Annex A to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement (File No. 000-50348) filed
August 13, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 3, 2005, by and between
Lincare Inc., Med 4 Home Inc., United States Pharmaceutical Group, LLC and NationsHealth,
Inc. Certain schedules referenced in the Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreement
have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. A copy of any
omitted schedule will be furnished supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Commission
upon request. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 4, 2007, by and between United States
Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C. and Susan Hill. Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-
K (File No. 000-50348) filed September 10, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

Second Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Millstream Acquisition Corporation. Filed as
Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 8-A12G/A (File No. 000-50348) filed September 8, 2004
and incorporated herein by reference.

By-Laws of NationsHealth, Inc., as amended and restated on August 31, 2004. Filed as Exhibit
3.4 to the Company’s Form 8-A12G/A (File No. 000-50348) filed September 8, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Specimen Common Stock Certificate. Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form $-1 (File No. 333-105388), as amended, originally filed on May 19, 2003
and incorporated herein by reference.

Specimen Warrant Certificate. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-105388), as amended, originally filed on May 19, 2003 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Unit Purchase Option granted to Representative, Filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the
Company’s Form S-1 (File No. 333-105388), as amended, originally filed on May 19, 2003
and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Warrant Agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and the
Company. Filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Form $-1 (File No. 333-105388), as
amended, originally filed on May 19, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

Specimen Unit Certificate. Filed as Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Form S-1 (File No. 333-
105388), as amended, originally filed on May 19, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

7 %% Secured Convertible Note issued by NationsHealth, Inc. to MHR Capital Partners (100)
LP dated February 28, 2005. Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348) filed March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

7 %% Secured Convertible Note issued by NationsHealth, Inc. to MHR Capital Partners LP
dated February 28, 2005. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348) filed March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibit No.

4.8
49

4.10

4.11

10.1*
10.2*
10.3*
10.4*
10.5*
10.6*
10.7*

10.8

10.9

10.10

Description
7 %% Secured Convertible Note issued by NationsHealth, Inc. to OTQ LLC dated February 28,

2005. Filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed March 4,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Warrant Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
Connecticut General Life Insurance Company. Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-
K (File No. 000-50348) filed May 11, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Warrant Clarification Agreement, dated March 28, 2007, to the Warrant Agreement,
dated as of August 25, 2003, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and Continental
Stock Transfer & Trust Company. Filed as Exhibit 4.10 to the Company’s Form 10-K (File
No. 000-50348) filed March 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

Unit Purchase Option Clarification Agreement, dated March 28, 2007, to the Unit
Purchase Option, dated as of August 25, 2003, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
Earlybird Capital, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 4.10 to the Company’s Form 10-K (File No. 000-
50348) filed March 30, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of March 9, 2004, by and between Millstream Acquisition
Corporation and Glenn M. Parker, M.D. Filed as Exhibit 5.02(d) to the Company’s Form 8-K
(File No. 000-50348) filed September 7, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of March 9, 2004, by and between Millstream Acquisition
Corporation and Robert Gregg. Filed as Exhibit 5.02(e) to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No.
000-50348) fited September 7, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of March 9, 2004, by and between Millstream Acquisition
Corporation and Lewis Stone. Filed as Exhibit 5.02(f) to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No.
000-50348) filed September 7, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of April 15, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
Gregory J. Couto. Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348)
filed April 21, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of April 15, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
Tracy M. Schmidt, Esq. Filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348) filed April 21, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of April 15, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
Tim Fairbanks. Filed as Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed
April 21, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement made as of February 3, 2006, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
Robert E. Tremain. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348)
filed February 9, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Indemnification and Escrow Agreement, dated as of August 30, 2004, among Millstream
Acquisition Corporation, Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Escrow, RGGPLS
Holding, Inc., and Arthur Spector. Filed as Exhibit 5.02(g) to the Company’s Form 8-K (File
No. 000-50348) filed September 7, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Lease Agreement with Liberty Property Limited Partnership dated December 23, 2002, for the
property located at 13650 N.W. 8™ Street, Sunrise, Florida. Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company’s Form 10-KSB (File No. 000-50348) filed March 25, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Assignment of Lease Agreement with Liberty Property Limited Partnership for the property
located at 13650 N.W. 8" Street, Sunrise, Florida, dated February 19, 2004. Filad as Exhibit
10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB (File No. 000-50348) filed March 25, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.,
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Exhibit No.

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19%

10.20*

10.21*

10.22%

10.23

Description
Lease Agreement with Liberty Property Limited Partnership dated February 9, 2004, for the

property located at 13630 N.W. 8" Street, Sunrise, Florida. Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the
Company’s Form 10-KSB (File No. 000-50348) filed March 25, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Assignment of Lease Agreement with Liberty Property Limited Partnership for the property
located at 13630 N.W. 8" Street, Sunrise, Florida, dated February 19, 2004, Filed as Exhibit
10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB (File No. 000-50348) filed March 25, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Sublease Agreement with D & K Healthcare Resources Inc. dated May 19, 2004, for the
premises located at 2955 West Corporate Lakes Boulevard, Weston, Florida. Filed as Exhibit
10.9 to the Company’s Form 10-KSB (File No. 000-50348) filed March 25, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

First Amendment of Sublease Agreement with D & K Healthcare Resources Inc. for the
premises located at 2955 West Corporate Lakes Boulevard, Weston, Florida, dated May 1,
2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed August
14, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Sublease Agreement with Asset Management Outsourcing, Inc. dated August 3, 2005, for the
property located at 7067C West Broward Boulevard Plantation, Florida 33317. Filed as
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed November 14, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Industrial Lease Agreement between Industrial Property Fund III, L.P. as Landlord, and
NationsHealth, Inc. and United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C. collectively, as Tenant,
commencing on September 4, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 000-50348) filed November 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Property Lease between Orange Blossom Investments, LLC, and NationsHealth, Inc., dated
October 13, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348)
filed November 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Lease Agreement between NationsHealth, Inc., as Lessee, and Farnam Street Financial, Inc., as
Lessor, dated February 5, 2007. Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No.
000-50348) filed February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan effective as of April 25, 2005. Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Faorm 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed June 17, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

RGGPLS Holding, Inc. Stock Bonus Plan & Trust effective December 30, 2004. Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form S-8 (File No. 333-126197) filed June 28, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. | to RGGPLS Holding, Inc. Stock Bonus Plan & Trust effective February 28,
2005. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form S-8 (File No. 333-126197) filed June 28,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

NationsHealth, Inc. 2004 Incentive Stock Plan, dated August 30, 2004. Filed as Annex [ to the
Company’s Schedule 14A (File No. 000-50348) filed August 13, 2004 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Security Agreement among
NationsHealth, Inc., United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C., NationsHealth Holdings,
L.L.C. and CapitalSource Finance LLC dated as of March 21, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed March 27, 2006 and incorporated herein
by reference.
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Exhibit No.

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27%*

10.28**

10.29

10.30*

10.31*

10.32*

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

Description
First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Security Agreement

dated August 11, 2006, by and between CapitalSource Finance LLC, United States
Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C., NationsHealth Holdings, L..L..C. and NationsHealth, Inc. Filed
as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed November 13, 2006
and incorporated herein by reference.

Waiver, Consent and Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
and Security Agreement dated September 27, 2006, by and between CapitalSource Finance
LLC, United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L..C., NationsHealth Holdings, L.L.C. and
NationsHealth, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348)
filed November 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit and Security
Agreement dated October 2, 2006, by and between CapitalSource Finance LLC, United States
Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C., NationsHealth Holdings, L.L.C. and NationsHealth, Inc.  Filed
as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed November 13, 2006
and incorporated herein by reference,

Amended and Restated Preferred Vendor Agreement by and among Connecticut General Life
Insurance Company, United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C. and NationsHealth, Inc.,
dated as of May 26, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-
50348) filed August 14, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Limited Liability Company Agreement of NationsHealth Specialty Rx, L1.C, dated August 3,
2005, by and between US Bioservices Corporation and NationsHealth, Inc. Filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed November 14, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement to Dissotve Limited Liability Company and Promissory Note, dated as of
September 27, 2006, between NationsHealth, Inc. and US Bioservices Corporation. Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed October 3, 2006 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement Between NationsHealth, Inc. and Robert E.
Tremain dated as of March 8, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the Company’s Form 10-K (File
No. 000-50348) filed March 31, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement Between NationsHealth, Inc. and Robert E.
Tremain dated as of June 14, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File
No. 000-50348) filed June 14, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement Between NationsHealth, Inc. and Robert E.
Tremain dated as of October 5, 2006. Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 000-50348) filed November 13, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Separation Agreement and General Release dated December 16, 2005, between Robert Gregg
and NationsHealth, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348} filed December 22, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Separation Agreement and Waiver and General Release of Claims dated June 30, 2006,
between NationsHealth, Inc. and Tracy M. Schmidt, Esq. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed August 14, 2006 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Separation Agreement and General Release dated October 5, 2006, between NationsHealth,
Inc. and Gregory Couto. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348) Aled October 16, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibit No.

10.36*

10.37*

10.38%

10. 39

10.40

10.41

10.42*

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47*

10.48*

10.49*

Description
Separation Agreement and General Release dated November 20, 2006, between NationsHealth,

Inc. and Robert E. Tremain. Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348) filed November 28, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement, dated December 26, 2006, between NationsHealth, Inc. and Joshua
Weingard. +

Employment Agreement, dated April 27, 2007, between NationsHealth, Inc. and Rodney
Carson. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed May 3,
2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2004, as amended on June 2, 2004, among
Millstream Acquisition Corporation, RGGPLS Holding, Inc. and GRS Holdings, L.L.C. Filed
as Annex E to the Company’s Schedule 14A (File No. 000-50348) filed August 13, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference. '

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2004, as amended on June 2, 2004, by
and among Millstream Acquisition Corporation, RGGPLS Holding, Inc., GRH Holdings,
L.L.C.,, and Becton, Dickinson and Company. Filed as Annex F to the Company’s Schedule
14A (File No. 000-50348) filed August 13, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Governance Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2004, among
Millstream Acquisition Corporation, RGGPLS Holding, Inc., and Arthur Spector. Filed as
Exhibit 5.02(a) to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed September 7, 2004 and
incorporated hergin by reference,

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the NationsHealth, Inc. 2004 Stock Option Plan. Filed
as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Form 10-QSB (File No. 000-50348) filed November 10,
2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc.
and Connecticut General Life Insurance Company. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s
Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed May 11, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated August 18, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc. and
US Bioservices Corporation. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-
50348) filed August 24, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 18, 2005, by and between NationsHealth, Inc.
and US Bioservices Corporation. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No.
000-50348) filed August 24, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 4, 2005, by and among NationsHealth,
Inc. and the Holders of Registrable Securities. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-
K (File No. 000-50348) filed November 10, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term Incentive
Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed November
14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term
Incentive Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term Incentive
Plan. Filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed November
14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.
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10.50*

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10,61

10.62

Description
Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement under the NationsHealth, Inc. 2005 Long-Term

Incentive Plan, Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. (00-50348) filed
November 14, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Investment Unit Purchase Agreement, dated February 28, 2005, by and among NationsHealth,
Inc., NationsHealth Holdings, L.L.C., United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.[..C., MHR
Capital Partners LP, OTQ LLC and MHR Capital Partners (100) LP. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Lease Agreement between NationsHealth, Inc., as lessee and Farnam Street Financial, Inc., as
lessor, dated February 3, 2007. Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form &-K (File No.
000-50348) filed February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

Third Amended and Restated Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Security Agresment dated
among United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C., NationsHealth Holdings, L.L.C.,
NationsHealth, Inc., and CapitalSource Finance LLC, dated April 11, 2007. Filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed April 12, 2007 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Acknowledgement by Robert Gregg to NationsHealth, Inc. dated July 16, 2007, Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 13-Q (File No. 000-50348) filed August 14, 2007 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the NationsHealth, Inc. 2004 Stock Option Plan,
effective August 15, 2007. Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-
50348) filed November 14, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

Lease Agreement between United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C., as lessee and Oakland
2600/2700, LLC, as lessor, dated December 4, 2007. +

Senior Subordination Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2005, by MHR Cagital Partners LP,
MHR Capital Partners (100) LP and OTQ LLC, MHR Capital Partners LP in its capacity as
collateral agent, in favor of CapitalSource Finance LLC, and for certain purposes RGGPLS
Holding, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) fited
March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated February 28, 2005, between NationsHezlth, Inc. and the
parties specified on the signature pages thereof. Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form
8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Stockholders Agreement, dated February 28, 2005, by and among NationsHealth, Inc.,
RGGPLS Holding, Inc., GRH Holdings, L.L.C, MHR Capital Partners LP, OTQ LLC and
MHR Capitat Partners (100) LP. Filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No.
000-50348) filed March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

Consent and Waiver, dated as of February 28, 2005, among NationsHealth, In:. and the
stockholders of NationsHealth, Inc. named on the signature pages thereto. Filed as Exhibit 10.6
to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed March 4, 2005 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 5, 2006, by and among NationsHealth, Inc.,
United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C. and HealthTran LLC. Filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed September 6, 2006 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Agreement of Termination, dated as of September 13, 2006, by and among NationsHealth,
Inc., United States Pharmaceutical Group, L.L.C. and Becton, Dickinson and Company. Filed
as Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 000-50348) filed Septeraber 13, 2006
and incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibit No.

10.63

21
23.1
24.1

311

31.2

321

Description
Fifth Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 27,

2008, by and among United States Pharmaceutical Group, LLC dba NationsHealth,
NationsHealth Holdings, LL.C, NationsHealth, Inc. and Diabetes Care and Education, inc. and
CapitalSource Finance, LLC. +

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.+
Consent of Emnst & Young LLP.+

Limited Power of Attorney appointing Joshua Weingard or Timothy Fairbanks attorneys-in-
fact, dated September 19, 2007, by and on behalf of Robert Gregg, filed as Exhibit 24.1 to
Robert Gregg's Form 4 fited on September 20, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.+

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.+

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.#

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

** Portions of this Exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to a request for confidential treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934,

+ Filed herewith.

# Furnished herewith.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(N Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-105388) of NationsHealth, Inc.,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-119462) pertaining to the NationsHealth, Inc. 2004
Stock Option Plan,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-126197) pertaining to the RGGPLS Holding Inc.
Stock Bonus Plan & Trust, and

4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-126561) pertaining to the NationsHealth, Inc. 2005
Long-Term Incentive Plan;

of our report dated March 27, 2008, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of
NationsHealth, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Miami, Florida
March 27, 2008

/sfErnst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
1, Glenn M. Parker, M.D., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NationsHealth, Inc,;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to

state a matetial fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the registrant’s board
of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2008

By:  /s/ Glenn M. Parker, M.D.

Glenn M. Parker, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Timothy Fairbanks, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NationsHealth, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to

state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;”

3. Based on my knowtedge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal conirol over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclesure controls and procedures, or caused such disclesure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a} Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or net material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s intemnal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 28, 2008

By:  /sf/ Timothy Fairbanks

Timothy Fairbanks
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of NationsHealth, Inc. (the “Company™) for
the year ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date
hereof (the “Report™), the undersigned, Glenn M. Parker, M.D., Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and Timothy Fairbanks, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 28, 2008 By: /s/ Glenn M. Parker, M.D.

Glenn M. Parker, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)

Date: March 28, 2008 By: /s/ Timothy Fairbanks

Timothy Fairbanks
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
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